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Introduction 

1.1. Purpose 

The Kansas Association of Workforce Boards (KAWB) is a member organization consisting of Not for Profit 501(c) 

3 organizations that serve as the Local Workforce Development Board’s (LWDB) as designated by the Governor 

of Kansas as established by the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act.   The LWDB provides Workforce 

Development Services across Kansas and the five local designated areas.  The State of Kansas has divided Kansas 

into five (5) Local Areas for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act operations.  

 

Area I 
Kansas Workforce ONE 
631 E Crawford, Suite 206 
Salina, Kansas 67401 
785-493-8018  
www.kansasworkforceone.org 
Deb Scheibler, Executive Director 
Kendra McAlister  
Kendra@kansasworkforceone.org 

Area II 
Heartland Works 
5020 SW 28th St, Suite 100 
Topeka, KS 66614 
785-234-0500 
www.heartlandworks.org 
David Brennan, Executive Director 
Theresa Figge, Senior Finance Director 
tfigge@heartlandworks.org 

Area III 
Workforce Partnership 
8535 Bluejacket 
Lenexa, KS 66214 
913-577-5900 
www.workforcepartnership.com 
Keely Schneider, Executive Director 
Jo Adams, CFO 
joa@workforcepartnerhip.com 

Area IV 
Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas 
300 W Douglas, Suite 850 
Wichita, KS 67202 
316-771-6600 
www.workforce-ks.com 
Keith Lawing, President and CEO 
Chad Pettera, Chief Operating Officer 
chad@workforce-ks.com 

Area V 
Southeast  KANSASWORKS  

215 W 6th Ave, Suite 104 
Emporia, KS 66801 

620-208-6341 
www.sekworks.org 

Leanne Kehres, Executive Director 
leanne@sekworks.org 



 

1.2. Funding Sources  

The primary funding source for the five LWDB’s is the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) 

enacted July 22, 2014.  The purpose of the WIOA is to provide workforce development activities, through 

statewide and local workforce development systems.  These systems are in place to increase the employment, 

retention, and earnings of participants, as well as increase the attainment of occupational skills by participants 

resulting in a qualified workforce, which reduces dependency and enhances the productivity and 

competitiveness of the nation. 

There are three primary WIOA programs under Title 1 that the LWDB’s directly oversee: Adult, Youth, and 

Dislocated Worker. Funds are distributed by formula to LWDB’s by the Kansas Department of Commerce (KDC).  

A maximum of 10% of each WIOA program fund may be used for local administration.  KDC also makes available 

Set Aside funds and other grant allocations to Local Areas for specific purposes and projects. Each LWDB also 

operates other grant programs and programs funded through foundations or other public and private entities.  A 

breakdown of the funding by area by program for fiscal year 2016 is included in Attachment D. 

1.3. WIOA Funding Overview 

WIOA funds are allocated and made available to Local Areas annually.  The program year for WIOA programs 

generally is July 1-June 30.  Funds are available for expenditure by the Local Areas for a period of two years.  

Funds unexpended within the two-year period are subject to recapture by KDC.  Funds for the Adult and 

Dislocated Worker Programs are allocated according to a July 1 to June 30 “Program Year”, and a “Fiscal Year” 

funding allocation for the period October 1-June 30.  Youth Program funds are made available in a single 

allocation available April 1 to June 30. 

Based on the two year availability of funding, each WIOA program may have open budgets during three program 

years.  For local financial reporting purposes, the “program year” and “fiscal year” allocations may be combined 

into a single program year budget. 

2. Proposal Instructions 

2.1. Request for Application 

KAWB is soliciting proposals from qualified entities to provide auditing services for the LWDB’s.  The 

LWDB’s may contract each separately or as one entity under the KAWB.  The purpose of this Request for 

Proposal (RFP) is to solicit proposals and provide the general guidelines and procedures for submitting 

such a proposal.  The RFP Package can be obtained by visiting: 

Kansas WorkforceOne   www.kansasworkforcerone.org 785-493-8018 

Heartland Works www.heartlandworks.org 785-234-0500 

Workforce Partnership www.workforcepartnership.com 913-577-5900 

Workforce Alliance of SC Kansas www.workforce-ks.com 316-771-6600 

KANSASWORKS Southeast Kansas www.sekworks.org 620-208-6341 

 

 

http://www.kansasworkforcerone.org/
http://www.heartlandworks.org/
http://www.workforcepartnership.com/
http://www.workforce-ks.com/


2.2. Submission of Proposals 

One (1) original (clearly marked original) and five (5) copies of the proposal, and an electronic copy (written in 
Microsoft Word or PDF) forwarded by email or CD/DVD, must be received by the individual(s) identified in the 
contact table in section 1.1 no later than 12:00 p.m. local time May 11, 2018.  Proposals received after stated 
time will not be considered. 
 
Proposals can be emailed to a local area using the email address in the contact information in section 1.1 or 
mailed to a Local Area using the address in section 1.1 and labeling the package clearly with the name Audit 
RFP. 
 
The cost of developing and submitting the proposal is entirely the responsibility of the proposer.  This includes 
costs to determine the nature of engagement, preparation of the proposal, submitting the proposal, 
negotiating for the Contract and other costs associated with this Request for Proposal.  All responses will 
become the property of KAWB and will be a matter of public record subsequent to the award of the Contract or 
rejection of the bid. 

2.3. Key Dates 

April 11, 2018     RFP Available for Distribution 

April 20, 2018 5:00 p.m.    Pre-Proposal Questions Due 

April 25, 2018 10:00 a.m.   Pre-Proposal Conference 

May 11, 2018 12:00 p.m.   Deadline for Proposals to be Received 

 

2.4. Pre-proposal Conference 

A pre-proposal conference will be held at 10:00 AM Central Standard Time on April 25, 2018 by conference 

call.  Interested proposers must contact Chad Pettera via voice at 316-771-6602 or via email to 

chad@workforce-ks.com to RSVP no later than 8:00 AM on April 23, 2018 to receive instructions on how to 

join the conference call. 

Attendance is not required at the pre-proposal conference but is encouraged.    

 

ALL QUESTIONS REQUESTING CLARIFICATION OF THE REQUEST TO BE ADDRESSED AT THE PRE-PROPOSAL 

CONFERENCE MUST BE SUBMITTED IN WRITING (E-MAIL OR FAX), TO CHAD@WORKFORCE-KS.COM PRIOR 

TO 5:00 P.M. CENTRAL STANDARD TIME ON APRIL 20, 2018.  

Impromptu questions will be permitted and spontaneous unofficial answers provided, however proposers 

should clearly understand that the only official answer or position of KAWB would be in writing. 

Failure to notify KAWB of any conflicts or ambiguities in the Request may result in items being resolved in 

the best interest of the KAWB.  Any modification to this Request as a result of the pre-proposal conference, 

as well as written answers to written questions, shall be made in writing and posted at www.workforce-

ks.com.  Only written communications are binding. 

mailto:chad@workforce-ks.com


2.5. Proposal Components 

Proposals should be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward, concise description of the 

proposers capacity to satisfy the requirements of the RFP package.  Emphasis should be on completeness of the 

proposal and clarity of content.  Repetition of the terms and conditions of the RFP package, without additional 

explanation, will not be considered responsive. 

No paperwork or form is provided for the proposal.  Instead, proposers are asked to prepare proposals in a format 

that best conveys the details of the offering.   

As a general guideline in preparing the narrative, proposers should be careful to thoroughly identify themselves, 

both individually and/or corporately.  At minimum, all proposers shall provide the following identifying 

information in the narrative portion of their proposals: 

 Proposers Identification - Name, address, phone number, and authorized signature of proposer.   
 Corporate identification - If applicable, proposer’s corporate or other business information, date 

established, structure (trust, partnership, corporation, non-profit, etc.), and federal tax 
identification number, and Dun and Bradstreet Number.   

 All proposers shall include the following with their bid submissions: 

 Table of Contents with page numbers 

 Signature Sheet (provided as Attachment A) 

 Response 

 Project Cost Proposal 

 Proposers Financial Ability, Experience and Qualifications 
o date established; 
o ownership (public, partnership, subsidiary, etc.); 
o number of personnel, full and part-time, assigned to this  

   project by function and job title; 
o location of the project within the proposer's organization; 
o relationship of the project and other lines of business 
o most current audit/peer review 

 
Proposers can submit a bid including all local areas under KAWB or they can bid on one or multiple local areas.  

Proposers should clearly identify the area or areas they are submitting proposals for. 

Beyond these general guidelines, proposers are invited to submit additional information in the narrative section 

that they may consider important in fully explaining their proposal and the advantages for its selection.  Any 

information submitted must be clearly understood. 

The narrative response, cost proposal, and proposers financial ability, experience, and qualifications shall not 

exceed 20 pages.  The narrative section should be typed with double line spacing using a font size of 11 or larger.  

This section should be published on 8 ½ X 11 plain paper stock printed on one side only.  

3. General Provisions 

3.1. Inquiries:  All inquiries, written or verbal, shall be directed to the individuals in section 1.1. 



Communication is prohibited between the proposers, its employees, representatives, or agents, and any 

KAWB member employee, representative, or agent, other than as stated above, regarding this Request 

except with designated participants in attendance ONLY DURING: 

 Negotiations 

 Contract Signing 

 As otherwise specified in this Request 

 

Violations of this provision by the proposer or KAWB member personnel may result in the rejection of the 

proposal. 

3.2. Negotiated Procurement:  Final evaluation and award is made by the KAWB.     

3.3. Appearance Before Committee:  Any, all, or no proposers may be required to appear before a 

committee or board to explain their understanding and approach to the project and/or respond to 

questions from the KAWB concerning the proposal; or, the KAWB may award to the proposer with the 

lowest price without conducting negotiations.  The KAWB reserves the right to request information from 

proposers as needed.  If information is requested, the KAWB is not required to request the information of 

all proposers. 

3.4. Final Offer: Proposers selected to participate in negotiations may be given an opportunity to submit a best 

and final offer to the KAWB.  Prior to a specified cut-off time for best and final offers, proposers may 

submit revisions to their proposals.  Meetings before the KAWB are subject to the Kansas Open Meetings 

Act.   

3.5. Revisions: No additional revisions shall be made after the specified cut-off time unless requested by the 

KAWB 

3.6. Acceptance or Rejection:  The KAWB reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals or part of 

a proposal; to waive any informalities or technicalities; clarify any ambiguities in proposals; modify any 

criteria in this Request; and unless otherwise specified, to accept any item in a proposal. 

3.7. Agreement: The successful proposer will be required to enter into a formal contract that is acceptable to 

the LWDB’s. Special Provisions within the agreement allow for the addition of attachments, amendments, 

and special conditions that may be negotiated by the successful proposer and KAWB. The proposer’s 

response to this RFP shall be included as a legal part of the agreement.  In the absence of any language to 

the contrary, this RFP will be the determining document in questions of compliance with the specifications 

for this project. 

3.8. Contract Formation:   No contract shall be considered to have been entered into by KAWB or and LWDB’s 

until all statutorily required signatures and certifications have been rendered; and a written contract has 

been signed by the successful proposer and the LWDB’s. 

3.9. Open Records Act (K.S.A. 45-205 et seq.):  All proposals become the property of KAWB.  Information 

contained in proposals will become open for public review once a contract is signed or all proposals are 

rejected.  Any information deemed proprietary by the proposer should be labeled as such.  The final 

determination of proprietary will be the responsibility of the KAWB.  Price/Cost information is not 

considered proprietary. 

3.10. Federal, State and Local Taxes-Governmental Entity:  Unless otherwise specified, the proposal price 

shall include all applicable federal, state and local taxes.  The successful proposer shall pay all taxes lawfully 

imposed on it with respect to any product or service delivered in accordance with this Request.   



3.11. Debarment of Contractors: Any proposer who defaults on delivery as defined in this Request may be 

barred after reasonable notice to the person involved and reasonable opportunity for that person to be 

heard.  

3.12. Insurance:  KAWB or the LWDB’s shall not be required to purchase any insurance against loss or damage 

to any personal property nor shall they establish a "self-insurance" fund to protect against any loss or 

damage.  Subject to the provisions of the Kansas Tort Claims Act, the proposer shall bear the risk of any loss 

or damage to any personal property. 

3.13. Assurances: Contractor will comply with assurances under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 

and pursuant to this proposal will be subject to the laws, policies and procedures, including but not limited 

to the list below: 

 WIOA Public Law 113-128, July 22, 2014 

 20 CFR Parts 602-688 et al (Regulations) 

 20 CFR 200 uniform fiscal and administrative requirements, the audit requirements and the 
applicable allowable costs/cost principles 

 20 CFR 97.36(I) 

 other such laws, regulations, policies, procedures and/or guidance as may be promulgated 
 

Submission of the RFP Package with all required signatures signifies the proposer understands and agrees 
with all the assurances listed above.  

4. Proposal Evaluation 

4.1. Criteria for Evaluating Proposals:  KAWB and the LWDB’s shall make the award in the best interest of 

the organizations.   

4.2. General: The proposer should develop a proposal through a process that considers the mission and vision 

of the organizations.  All proposals submitted in response to the RFP will be evaluated by KAWB and the 

LWDB’s using the following criteria and factors (listed in no particular order of importance): 

4.3. Technical Response:  The extent to which the proposer effectively demonstrates an understanding of the 

needs of the agency as described in this RFP, and offers appropriate solutions to meet those needs.  The 

quality of the technical response is measured by the extent to which the specifications are adequately 

addressed within the proposer’s proposal, and the extent to which the proposer may suggest 

recommendations for improvements.  

4.4. Response Format and Completeness:   Adequacy and completeness of the proposal is required and 

carries an important weighting in the evaluation of all proposals. The proposal is to be complete, clear, and 

understandable.  Pages are to be consecutively numbered.   

4.5. Financial Ability:  The proposer demonstrated financial ability to implement, manage and maintain the 

proposed offering. 

4.6. Experience and Qualifications:  The proposers general experience and qualifications, and KAWB 

assessment of proposer’s ability to perform the work in a timely and professional manner.  The experience 

and professionalism of security services is also a consideration. 

5. Contractor Requirements 
To be qualified as a proposer applying for the auditing services the entity must meet the following requirements: 



 Be an established entity in good standing with the Kansas Secretary of State with a proven record of 
experience providing auditing services or similar types of services; 

 Have experience auditing Not For Profits 

 Has sufficient staff with experience that would be assigned to this award 

 Performed A-133 Audits as prescribed by the Comptroller General of the United States 

 Ability to meet the independent standards of the GAO, Standards for Audit of Governmental 
Organizations, Programs, Activities, and Functions published by the U.S. General Accounting Office 

 Have experience auditing state pass through funding agreements 

 Has completed a Peer Review and attached the report 

 Has Professional Liability Insurance 
 

5.1. Contract Period 

The contract period for the services will be from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021, three annual audits auditing the 

previous year’s programs and financials.  The contract may be eligible for two one year extensions; any 

extensions must be agreed upon in writing by all parties. 

5.2. Contract Statement of Work  

5.2.1. Conduct Annual A-133 Audits of each LWDB- Examine each LWDB’s financial reports in accordance with   
generally accepted auditing standards and ensure compliance with federal awards 

5.2.2. Schedules will be determined by each LWDB, but in general field work should be completed between 
September and November with final reports issued between December and January  

5.2.3. Issue audited financial statements at the end of each fiscal year 
5.2.4. File the final A-133 Audit in cooperation with LWDB electronically with the Federal Government 
5.2.5. Provide any work papers to the LWDB if requested 

5.3. Record Keeping Requirements  
 

5.3.1. Record Retention-  Contractor is required to maintain all records for a period of three years. If, prior to the 
expiration of the three year retention period, any litigation of audit is begun or claim instituted involving 
the grant or agreement covered by the records, the Contractor will retain the records three years after the 
litigation, audit finding or claim has been resolved. Contractor will provide all work papers upon request to 
the LWDB. 
 

5.3.2. Access to Records-  Contractor will ensure the Secretary of Labor, the Controller of the United States, the 
Inspector General, representatives of the State of Kansas, auditors contracted by the State of Kansas, or 
their duly authorized representatives have access to any pertinent Contractor books, documents, papers, 
electronic files, and/or records during normal business hours. Applicable federal, state and local law will 
determine public access to records. 

6. Required Contractual Provisions 

6.1. Acceptance of Proposal Content 

The proposer’s proposal, this RFP package, and any addenda will become part of the awarded Contract. 



6.2. Termination 

The Contract will be subject to termination for non-compliance with WIOA and other applicable laws, non-

performance/default, convenience or lack of funding. 

6.3. Assignment 

 The proposer shall not assign this Contract or any part thereof, without the written consent of KAWB or any 

LWDB.  In no case shall such consent relieve the proposer from the obligation under, or change the terms of this 

Contract.  The transfer or assignment of any part of this Contract to include contract funds, either in whole or 

part, and interest therein, which shall be due or become due the proposer, without the written consent of a LWDB 

or KAWB, shall not obligate a LWDB for any associated expenditures. 

6.4. Subcontracting 

 In the event that the proposer elects to subcontract any of the services relative to the Contract, the proposer will 

notify the LWDB and KAWB.  The LWDB must approve any subcontract prior to subcontractor providing any 

services. All subcontractors will be required to meet all laws, regulations and State policies pertaining to the 

administration of this contract. 

6.5. Independent Contractor 

 The proposer is an independent contractor and not an employee of any of the LWDB’s.  Neither the proposer nor 

any agent or employee of the proposer shall be considered an employee of a LWDB for any purpose whatsoever.  

The proposer agrees that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel required to perform all the services 

required under this Contract.  The proposer agrees that proposer will be responsible for all taxes, social security 

payments, unemployment compensation and all other obligations of an employer. 

6.6. Contract Modification 

The KAWB and any LWDB reserves the right to make changes to the Contract, provided the changes are 

within the scope of work described in the Contractor Work Plan/Statement of Work.  KAWB or any LWDB 

agrees to make any such change in the Contract only through a written modification, and to provide a copy of 

the modification to the Contractor.  All modifications initiated by the Contractor will be bilateral.  The 

contractor will provide the LWDB a letter clearly stating the reason(s) for the proposed modification and the 

effect on the Work Plan or Budget. 

6.6.1. Reasons for Modification-  Contract Modification will be necessary if any of the following occurs: 
 There is a change in the scope of the project funded under the contract; 
 There is a material change in the Work Plan/Statement of Work. 
 There is a change in the implementation of governing federal and/or state rules and 

regulations affecting the Contract. 
 
6.6.2. Modification Due to Change in Legislation or Regulation-  Any alterations, additions, or deletions to 

the terms of the Contract which are required due to changes in federal or state laws, regulations or 
directives are automatically incorporated in the Contract unilaterally without written modifications and 
will go into effect on the date designated by the law, regulation or directive. In the event the Contractor 
is unable to comply with any required contract modification, the LWDB shall be notified by the 
Contractor within 30 days, at which time the LWDB may declare this Contract canceled and proceed 
under the Contract cancellation provisions.  Further, in the event the Contractor is unable to meet the 
contractual goals and/or obligations as specified herein or in any subsequent contract amendment, the 
Contractor may request modification of the Contract.  The Contract may also be modified upon 
agreement of all parties to this Contract. 



 
6.6.3. Disagreement Regarding a Modification-  In the event that either party does not accept a Contract 

modification request, the party of the disagreement will respond to the other party in writing 
delineating the issues of the disagreement within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the request to modify 
the Contract. 

6.7. Indemnification 

The Contractor agrees to a pay all debts for labor and/or materials contracted by it, if any, for and on account 

of the services to be performed hereunder.  The Contractor will assume the defense of, and hold the LWDB’s 

and its officers, agents and employees harmless from all suits and claims against any of them arising from any 

act or omission of the Contractor, or anyone directly employed by them or anyone from whose acts any of 

them may be liable.  The indemnification obligation of the Contractor will not be limited in any way under 

The Worker’s Compensation Acts, disability benefits acts or other employee benefits acts. 

6.8. Terms and Conditions 

The Contractor understands and agrees to comply with all requirements stated in this RFP package.  If there 
is a difference between what is stated in the proposer’s proposal and what is included in the RFP package, the 
RFP package will take precedent over the proposer’s proposal. 
  

 The Contract will be made contingent upon the availability of funding. 
 The Contractor agrees to obtain prior written approval of any LWDB for major service changes. 
 The LWDB’s reserves the right to accept or reject any or all applications received, or to negotiate 

with qualified proposers. 
 

6.9. Changes/Modifications to RFP 

In the event it becomes necessary to revise any part of this RFP package, the revisions will be posted on the 
websites listed in section 2.1.  IT IS THE PROPOSERS RESPONSIBILITY TO CHECK FOR UPDATES/CHANGES. 
The Contractor agrees to conduct activities subject to, and will conduct business under, the Contract in 
accordance with any and all federal, state or local regulations, rules, policies, directives, issuances and 
ordinances, in effect or promulgated during the term of the Contract. 

 

 

 

  



Attachment A- Signature Sheet  (Available for Download from www.workforce-ks.com) 

SIGNATURE SHEET 
Item:  Audit Services 

Agency:  KAWB 

Closing Date: May 11, 2018, 12:00 p.m. Central Time. 

We submit a proposal to furnish requirements during the contract period in accordance with the specifications. I hereby certify that I 

(we) do not have any real or substantial conflict of interest sufficient to influence the bidding process on this bid.  A conflict of 

substantial interest, or the appearance thereof, is defined as any circumstance which would lead a reasonable person to believe a 

compromise of an open competitive bid process has occurred. 

Addenda:  The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the following addenda: 

Legal Name of Person, Firm or Corporation: Click here to enter text. 

Toll Free Telephone:  Click here to enter text. Local:  Click here to enter text. Fax:  Click here to enter text. 

Mailing Address:  Click here to enter text. 

City:  Click here to enter text.  State:  Choose an item.   Zip Code:  Click here to enter text. 

FEIN Number:  Click here to enter text. DUN Number: Click here to enter text. E-Mail:  Click here to enter text. 

Signature:  Click here to enter text.  Date:  Click here to enter a date. 

Typed Name of Signature:  Click here to enter text.  Title:  Click here to enter text. 

……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

If awarded a contract and the primary contact will be other than above, indicate name, mailing address and telephone number below. 

Name:  Click here to enter text. 

Address:  Click here to enter text. 

City:  Click here to enter text. State:  Choose an item.   Zip Code:  Click here to enter text. 

Toll Free Telephone:  Click here to enter text.  Local:  Click here to enter text.  Fax:  Click here to enter text. 

E-Mail:  Click here to enter text. 

Website:  Click here to enter text. 

  



Attachment B – Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion  

 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING 

DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION 

 

 

By signature hereon, Proposer certifies that neither the Vendor nor its Principals are suspended, debarred, proposed for 

debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from the award of contracts from United States (“U.S.”) federal 

government procurement or nonprocurement programs, or are listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal 

Procurement or Nonprocurement Programs issued by the U.S. General Service Administration. “Principals” means 

officers, directors, owners, partners, and persons having primary management or supervisory responsibilities within a 

business entity (e.g. general manager, plant manager, head of a subsidiary, division or business segment, and similar 

positions). Vendor shall provide immediate written notification to the KAWB association member if, at any time prior to 

award, Vendor learns that this certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of 

changed circumstances. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when 

making an award. If it is later determined that Vendor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to the 

other remedies available to the KAWB association member, the KAWB association member may terminate the contract 

resulting from the solicitation for default. 

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________             ______________________ 

Signature       Date 

 

________________________________________________ 

Printed Name 

 

  



Attachment C-  Evaluation Criteria-  Each proposal will be rated and scored against the following point system: 

Mandatory Items- 

Mandatory Items Yes No 

Does the proposer have a permit to engage in the practice of public 
accounting in the State of Kansas? 

  

Does the proposer meet the independent requirements of applicable auditing 
standards? 

  

Has the proposer had an external Peer Review conducted by an independent 
third party in the last three years? 

  

Auditor has met the continuing professional education requirements of 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States? 

  

 

Priority Items- (Each no response = reduction of 5 points) 

 Yes No 

Has the proposer been disciplined by the Kansas State Board of Accountancy 
(or federal oversight agency) for substandard work in the last three years? 

  

Has the firm received an unqualified peer review report in the last three 
years? 

  

 

Auditing Experience- 

 Nonprofit Audits Conducted by the firm in the past 5 years: (1-10 Points)   _______ 

  Considerations: 

   Prior nonprofit experience 

   Prior experience with similar entities 

   Prior Experience with this entity 

 

Staff/Personnel- 

 Number of Nonprofit Audits completed in the past year.      _______ 

   1-3 4 points 

   4-6 6 points 

   7-10 8 points 

   11+ 10 points 

 Other Considerations (10 Points)        _______ 

   Years of Experience 

   Experience with similar entities 

   Number of nonprofit audits 

   Number of staff assigned to this project 

Technical Proposal- 

 

Was the proposer compliant with the requirements of the RFP (10 Points)                  _______ 



  

 Yes (5 Points) No 

Does the proposal demonstrate the firm understands the requirements of the RFP?   

Does the proposal demonstrate the firm can meet the deadlines established?   

 

 

Contract Price- 

 

 Points 

Lowest Total Price 12 

Total Price up to 120% of lowest price 10 

Total Price between 121% and 140% of lowest price 8 

Total price between 141% and 160% of lowest price 6 

Total Price greater than 161% 4 



 

Attachment D – Schedule of Budget by Program for FY17 by LWDB  
 

  

Kansas 
WorkforceOne  

Heartland 
Works  

Workforce 
Partnership  

Workforce 
Alliance  SE KansasWorks 

 CFDA # 

Current 
Allocation 
Amounts  

Current 
Allocation 
Amounts  

Current 
Allocation 
Amounts  

Current 
Allocation 
Amounts  

Current 
Allocation 
Amounts 

US Dept. of Labor (Direct 
Awards)  

         

H-1B Job Training Grants- 
KAMP 17.268 $84,075  $-  $-  $1,701,934  $- 

           

Total US Dept. of Labor Direct 
Awards  

$84,075  $-  $-  $1,701,934  $- 

           

USDOL- KDC Pass Through           

Disability Employ. Initiative 17.278 $197,627  $-  $153,571  $139,272  $- 

Workforce Innovation Fund 17.283 $199,800  $279,486  $135,904  $115,540  $179,000 

Apprenticeship USA 17.285 $211,549  $220,549  $127,545  $178,650  $- 

           

Total USDOL-KDC Pass Through  $608,976  $500,035  $417,020  $433,462  $179,000 

           

WIOA Cluster           

Adult 17.258 $435,721  $539,641  $1,073,407  $1,372,782  $692,943 

Youth 17.259 $618,792  $822,210  $1,193,609  $1,084,922  $842,109 

Dislocated Worker & Rapid 
Response 17.278 $452,551  $538,949  $1,038,855  $733,579  $694,694 

 WIOA Total  $1,507,064  $1,900,800  $3,305,901  $3,191,283  $2,229,726 

           

Senior Community Service 
Employment Program 17.235 

$-  $-  $-  $828,000  $- 

           

Total USDOL- KDC Pass 
Through  

$2,200,115  $2,400,835  $3,722,921  $5,326,679  $2,229,726 

           

USDOL- Other Pass Through           

H-1B Job Training Grants 17.268 $-  $-  $-  $349  $- 

KANTrain- Wichita Area Tech. 17.282 $-  $-  $-  $8,100  $- 
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Butler Comm. College 
TAACCCT 17.282 

$-  $-  $-  $43,000  $- 

Total USDOL- Other Pass 
Through  

$-  $-  $-  $51,449  $- 

           

USDA- Kansas Dep. Children 
& Family  

         

GOALS- SNAP 10.596 $-  $-  $-  $181,445  $- 

           

U.S. Dept. of Defense           

WSU Robotics Initiative 12.63 $-  $-  $-  $56,250  $- 

           

US Dept. of Health and 
Human Services- KDC  

         

Health Profession Opportunity 
Project IMPACT Study 93.093 $9,000  $10,000  $11,121  $10,000  $10,000 

Health Profession Opp. Project  93.093 $694,924  $541,740  $507,060  $590,494  $590,494 

Total US Dept. of Health and 
Human Services  

$703,924  $551,740  $518,181  $600,494  $600,494 

           

US Dept. of Health and 
Human Services- Kansas 

Dept. of Children and Family  
         

Voc. Rehab- Pre Employment 
Project 84.126 

$78,970  $-  $-  $35,000  $- 

           

Community Service Block 
Grant- From City of Wichita 93.569 

$-  $-  $-  $50,300  $- 

           

Total Federal Expenditures  $2,983,009  $2,952,575  $4,241,102  $6,301,617  $2,830,220 

           

Other Expenditures- 
Public/Private Funding  

$653,972  $-  $-  $474,720  $- 

           

Total Expenditures  $3,636,981  $2,952,575  $4,241,102  $6,776,337  $3,009,220 

           

  



 

Attachment E – Kansas WorkforceOne FY16 Audit  
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
Board of Directors 
Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc. 
Salina, Kansas 
 
Report on Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc. 
(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the related 
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc. as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.  The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis, and is not a required part of the financial statements.  Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.  In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 22, 2018, on 
our consideration of Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc.’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc.’s internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc.’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
Wipfli LLP 
 
 
Madison, Wisconsin 
February 22, 2018 
 
 



Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment
Board, Inc.
Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2017

Assets

Current assets:
Cash 97,616$              
Grants receivable 320,463              
Accounts receivable 25,800                
Prepaid expenses 45,482                

   Total current assets 489,361              

TOTAL ASSETS 489,361$            

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 121,049$            
Accrued payroll and related expenses 40,666                
Accrued vacation 18,923                
Deferred revenue 308,723              

    Total current liabilities 489,361              

Net assets:
Unrestricted 0                         

Total net assets 0                         

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 489,361$            
                       

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 3



Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment
Board, Inc.
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenue:
Grant revenue 2,751,777$        

Expenses:
Program expenses 2,639,679
Management and general 112,098

Total expenses 2,751,777          

Change in net assets 0                        

Net assets - Beginning of the year 0                        

Net assets - End of the year $0

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 4



Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment
Board, Inc.

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Program
Management & 

General Total

Payroll and related benefits $1,380,900 $47,818 $1,428,718
Training 399,804               0                          399,804               
Supportive services 117,367               0                          117,367               
Work experience 178,736               0                          178,736               
Travel 163,565               16,221                 179,786               
Rent, utilities, janitorial 136,696               2,869                   139,565               
Paymaster fee 34,692                 20,785                 55,477                 
Equipment 164                      16                        180                      
Meetings and conferences 7,245                   4,050                   11,295                 
Materials and supplies 82,175                 5,075                   87,250                 
Communication 38,254                 977                      39,231                 
Insurance 9,177                   1,903                   11,080                 
Other participant costs 58,716                 0                          58,716                 
Professional fees 16,611                 7,979                   24,590                 
Dues and subscriptions 2,220                   2,885                   5,105                   
Information technology support 12,946                 1,114                   14,060                 
Miscellaneous 411                      406                      817                      

Total $2,639,679 $112,098 $2,751,777
                            

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 5



Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment
Board, Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Increase (decrease) in cash:
Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets 0$                      

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 
net cash provided by operating activities:

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Grants receivable 135,596)(             
Accounts receivable 11,682)(               
Prepaid expenses 12,389)(               
Accounts payable 35,481               
Accrued payroll and related expenses 17,532)(               
Accrued vacation 3,670                 
Deferred revenue 177,286             

Net cash provided by operating activities 39,238               

Change in cash 39,238               
Cash - Beginning of the year 58,378               

Cash - End of the year 97,616$             
                      

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 6



Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, 
Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of Operations 
 
Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc. (the “Organization”) was organized as a nonprofit 
corporation in 2001.  The Organization was formed to assist in meeting the training and employment needs of 
workers and employers in 62 counties in Central and Western Kansas.  The primary duties of the Organization are 
to manage federal job training funds, operate One-Stop Workforce Centers and coordinate the public workforce 
system within the region.   
 
The Organization is primarily supported through federal, state, and local grants.  Approximately 80% of grant 
funding is federal funding from the U.S. Department of Labor, passed-through the State of Kansas Department of 
Commerce.  A significant reduction in the level of funding from the U.S. Department of Labor could have an 
adverse effect on the Organization’s program services. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
All financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable represents costs shared with partner agencies for office spaces and other services that were 
requested for reimbursement.  No estimate is made for doubtful receivables, as the Organization believes they are 
fully collectible. 
 
Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method.  The Organization considers property and equipment to be items with a cost of $5,000 or more and a 
useful life of over one year.  The Organization has not acquired fixed assets costing in excess of $5,000.  Furniture 
and fixtures below the capitalization threshold have been acquired by the Organization and reported as an expense 
in the year of acquisition.  An inventory record is maintained by the Organization to control their physical 
existence and movement.



Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, 
Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Property and Equipment (Continued) 
 
Property and equipment purchased with grant funds are owned by the Organization while used in the program for 
which it was purchased or in other future authorized programs.  However, the various funding sourced have a 
reversionary interest in the equipment purchased with grant funds.  Its disposition, as well as the ownership of any 
proceeds therefrom, is subject to funding source regulations. 
 
Classification of Net Assets 
 
Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified and reported 
as follows: 
 
Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. 
 
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or may not be met, 
either by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time.  When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted 
net assets are transferred to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released 
from restrictions.  As of June 30, 2017, the Organization did not have any temporarily restricted net assets. 
 
Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained 
permanently by the Organization.  Generally, the donors of these assets permit the Organization to use all or part of 
the income earned on any related investments for general or specific purposes.  As of June 30, 2017, the 
Organization did not have any permanently restricted net assets. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions 
expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized.  All other contributions are reported as increases 
in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions.  When a restriction 
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of 
activities as contributions released from restriction. 
 
Conditional promises to give are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met 
and the promises become unconditional. 
 
Support funded by grants is recognized as the Organization performs the contracted services or incurs outlays 
eligible for reimbursement under the grant agreements.  The program activities and the related outlays are subject 
to audit and acceptance by the granting agency.  Consequently, such audit may mandate adjustment.  Grants are 
either recorded as contributions or exchange transactions based on criteria contained in the grant award.



Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, 
Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Revenue Recognition (Continued) 
 
A. Grant Awards That Are Contributions 
 
Grants that qualify as contributions are recorded as invoiced to the funding sources.  Revenue is recognized in the 
accounting period when the related allowable expenses are incurred.  Amounts received in excess of expenses are 
reflected as deferred revenue. 
 
B. Grant Awards That Are Exchange Transactions 
 
Exchange transactions reimburse based on a predetermined rate for services performed.  The revenue is recognized 
in the period the service is performed. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Organization is a nonprofit organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is exempt 
from Federal and Kansas income taxes. 
 
The Organization is required to assess whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon 
examination on the technical merits of the position assuming the taxing authority has full knowledge of all 
information.  If the tax position does not meet the more likely than not recognition threshold, the benefit of that 
position is not recognized in the financial statements.  The Organization has determined there are no amounts to 
record as assets or liabilities related to uncertain tax positions. 
 
Cost Allocation 
 
Direct costs that can be identified specifically with a final cost objective are directly charged to the program 
benefited.  Joint costs are allocated to benefiting programs using various allocation methods depending on the type 
of joint cost being allocated.  Joint costs are those costs incurred for the common benefit of all of the 
Organization’s programs, which cannot be readily identified with a final cost objective. 
 
Functional Expenses 
 
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statements of activities and functional expenses.  Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the 
programs and supporting services benefited. 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 22, 2018 which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued.



Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, 
Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 2 :  Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The Organization maintains depository relationships with a single financial institution located in Wichita, Kansas.  
Balances are insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) coverage up to $250,000.  At times, during 
the year, the balance in this account may exceed the insurance limits.  Management believes the financial 
institution has a strong credit ratings and credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.  There were no uninsured 
balances in excess of limits as of June 30, 2017. 
 
Note 3:  Grants Receivable 
 
Grants receivable at June 30, 2017, consisted of the following: 

  Amount 
Kansas Department of Commerce  $51,209 
Kansas Department of Corrections  7,716 
Hutchinson/Reno Co. Chamber of Commerce  2,500 
Kansas Department of Children & Families  242,338 
Saint Francis Community Services  16,700 
   
Totals  $320,463 

 
  Note 4:  Operating Leases 

 
The Organization leases its corporate office space, One-Stop Workforce Centers and equipment for operation of its 
programs under operating lease agreements.  The operating lease payments for the year ended June 30, 2017, were 
$155,409.  The future rental commitments under these leases having remaining terms in excess of one year as of 
June 30, 2017, are as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Organization also subleases space at various locations.  Sublease receipts for the year ended June 30, 2017, 
was $20,801.  The financial statement amounts are reported net of these receipts.  Anticipated future minimum 
lease receipts on the Organization’s subleases as of June 30, 2017, are $34,316.

  Amount 
2018  $132,669 
2019  66,676 
2020  6,232 
   
Totals  $205,577 



Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, 
Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 5:  Retirement Plan 
 
The Organization maintains a 403(b) retirement plan that covers substantially all employees.  Employer 
contributions are made at the discretion of the Board and are up to 4% of participating employee’s annual 
compensation.  The retirement benefit is immediately vested upon employee enrollment.  The contribution for the 
year ended June 30, 2017, is $45,444. 
 
Note 6:  Related Parties 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Organization entered into contracts for training services with Hutchinson 
Community College and Barton County Community College. Officials of these entities also served as board 
members for the Organization through June 30, 2017.  The contracts were awarded through a competitive bid 
process and the Organization’s policies were strictly followed.  The board members of the Organization were not 
involved in the selection process and no special consideration was given in awarding the contracts.   
 
During the year ended June 30, 2017, the following fees were paid:  

 
 
 

 
Note 7:  Grant Commitments 
 
As of June 30, 2017, the Organization had commitments for future funding under various grant awards of 
$1,516,592.  The revenue relating to these grants is not recognized in the accompanying financial statements as the 
revenue recognition is conditional on the occurrence of expenditures or the performance of services in the future 
and availability of federal funding.

Hutchinson Community College $74,058 
Barton County Community College $83,977 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Supplementary Information 
 
 
 
 



Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment
Board, Inc.
Schedule A-1
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through Entity Passed Through Federal
Grantor / Program or Cluster Title Number Identifying Number Program Year to Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce

Disability Employment Initiative 17.207 FY14-DEI-001 10/01/14-03/31/18 $0 $116,359

WIA/WIOA Cluster
WIA Adult Program 17.258 FY16-A-001 10/01/15-06/30/17 0                         286,459         
WIA/WIOA Adult Program 17.258 PY16-A-001 07/01/16-06/30/18 0                         126,583         
WIA/WIOA Adult Program 17.258 FY17-A-001 10/01/16-06/30/18 0                         264,752         

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 17.258 0                         677,794         

WIA Youth Program 17.259 PY15-Y-001 07/01/15-06/30/17 0                         231,423         
WIA/WIOA Youth Program 17.259 PY16-Y-001 07/01/16-06/30/18 0                         343,043         

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 17.259 0                         574,466         

WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY16-DW-001 10/01/15-09/30/17 0                         186,595         
WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY16-RR-001 10/01/16-09/30/17 0                         17,938           
WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY15-RR-1-001 10/01/15-09/30/16 0                         7,466             
WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY15-RRAA-2-001 07/01/15-06/30/16 0                         135,560         
WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY15-RR-2-001 07/01/15-06/30/16 0                         5,000             
WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY17-DW-001 10/01/16-06/30/18 0                         14,897           

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 17.278 0                         367,456         

Total Federal Expenditures - WIOA Cluster (CFDA 17.258, 17.259, 17.278) 0                         1,619,716      

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 0                         1,736,075      

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce

ACA Health Profession Opportunity Grants 93.093 KHPOP Impact Study 11/01/15-09/25/17 0                         6,483             
ACA Health Profession Opportunity Grants 93.093 FY16-KHPOP-001 09/30/15-09/29/16 0                         147,238         
ACA Health Profession Opportunity Grants 93.093 FY17-KHPOP-001 09/30/16-09/29/17 0                         309,525         

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 93.093 0                         463,246         

See Independent Auditor's Report. 12



Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment
Board, Inc.
Schedule A-2
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through Entity Passed Through Federal
Grantor / Program or Cluster Title Number Identifying Number Program Year to Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES (Continued)
Passed through Kansas Department of Children and Families

Temporary Assistance
for Needy Families 93.558 FY16-CSS-WorkForSuccess 07/01/15-06/30/16 0                         1,150)(             

Total Federal Expenditures - TANF Cluster CFDA 93.558 0                         1,150)(             

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 0                         462,096         

Total federal award expenditures $0 $2,198,171

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note 3 - Indirect Cost Rate

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal grant activity of Kansas Local Area I 
Workforce Investment Board, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2017. The information in this 
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards  (Uniform Guidance).   Because the schedule presents only a 
selected portion of the operations of Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the 
financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc.

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such expenditures are recognized following the cost 
principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as 
expenditures in prior years. 

Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc. did not elect to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance.

See Independent Auditor's Report. 13
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc. 
Salina, Kansas 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc. (a 
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the related 
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 22, 2018. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Kansas Local Area I Workforce 
Investment Board, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Kansas Local Area I 
Workforce Investment Board, Inc.'s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc.’s internal control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc.'s 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and in considering Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc.’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Wipfli LLP 
 
 
Madison, Wisconsin 
February 22, 2018 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on 
Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc. 
Salina, Kansas 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc.'s compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017.  
Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management of is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment 
Board, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc.'s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide legal determination Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment 
Board, Inc.'s compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Program 
 
In our opinion, Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment Board Inc. is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above.  In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Kansas Local Area I Workforce 
Investment Board, Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct 
and material effect on each major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment 
Board, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is 
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Wipfli LLP 
 
 
Madison, Wisconsin 
February 22, 2018 
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Section I - Summary Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued? Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weaknesses identified? No 
 Significant deficiencies identified? No 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs:  
 Material weaknesses identified? No 
 Significant deficiencies identified? No 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major program Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in  
accordance with the Uniform Guidance [2 CFR 200.516(a)]  No 

Identification of major federal programs: 

 Name of Federal Major Program or Cluster CFDA No. 

WIOA Cluster 17.258, 17.259, 17.278 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 
 Federal $750,000 
    
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 
 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 
 
None 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
None  

Section IV – Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 
 
None 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
Board of Directors 
Heartland Works, Inc. 
Topeka, Kansas 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Heartland Works, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), 
which comprise of the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related statements 
of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Heartland Works, Inc. as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in its net assets and its cash 
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis, and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. In our 
opinion, the information fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our February 7, 2018, on our 
consideration of Heartland Works, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of 
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Heartland 
Works, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Heartland Works, Inc.’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 
 
 
Wipfli LLP 
 
 
February 7, 2018 
Madison, Wisconsin 
 
 



Heartland Works, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Assets 2017 2016

Current assets:
Cash 29,591$             32,514$             
Accounts receivable 44,591               42,840               
Grants receivable 125,197             202,083             
Prepaid expenses 0                        2,987                 

   Total current assets 199,379             280,424             

Property and equipment:
Equipment 133,990             133,990             
Accumulated depreciation 133,990)(             131,212)(             

Property and equipment, net 0                        2,778                 

TOTAL ASSETS 199,379$           283,202$           

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 95,374$             171,171$           
Accrued payroll and related expenses 0                        24,594               
Compensated absences and related expenses 34,311               34,530               
Grant funds received in advance 58,143               39,511               

   Total current liabilities 187,828             269,806             

Net assets:
Unrestricted 11,551               13,396               

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 199,379$           283,202$           
                                                    

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 3



Heartland Works, Inc.

Statements of Activities
Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Revenue:
Grant revenue 2,716,938$        2,688,027$        
Other revenue 2                        38,437               

      Total revenue 2,716,940          2,726,464          

Expenses:
Program activities:

WIA adult programs 1,070,493          984,386             
WIA youth programs 730,764             944,059             
WIA dislocated workers programs 154,934             186,880             
WIA rapid response 0                        2,480                 
State administrative matching grants for SNAP 0                        7,478)(                 
Workforce Innovation Fund 13,547               0                        
Apprenticeship USA Grant 285                    0                        
Health professional opportunity and other programs 523,491             337,151             
Depreciation expense 2,778                 3,827                 

         Total program activities 2,496,292          2,451,305          
                          

   Management and general 222,493             277,769             

      Total expenses 2,718,785          2,729,074          
                          

Change in net assets 1,845)(                 2,610)(                 
Net assets - Beginning of the year 13,396               16,006               

Net assets - End of the year 11,551$             13,396$             

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 4



Heartland Works, Inc.

Statements of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Program
Management & 

General Total

Staff salaries and benefits $703,493 $156,817 $860,310
Conference expenses 150                      189                      339                      
Board expenses 215                      2,733                   2,948                   
Membership and subscriptions 1,206                   1,275                   2,481                   
Publication and outreach 1,137                   59                        1,196                   
Travel 3,586                   604                      4,190                   
Insurance 7,686                   3,369                   11,055                 
Professional services 3,433                   18,067                 21,500                 
Computer and software 27,898                 15,618                 43,516                 
Phone and internet 16,781                 2,889                   19,670                 
Equipment lease 3,195                   741                      3,936                   
Rent 123,497               15,567                 139,064               
Utilities 2,751                   25                        2,776                   
Janitorial services 6,713                   734                      7,447                   
Office supplies 3,714                   650                      4,364                   
Resource center 18,862                 0                          18,862                 
Support services 71,301                 0                          71,301                 
Training 862,701               0                          862,701               
Youth provider contracts 635,195               0                          635,195               
Miscellaneous 0                          3,156                   3,156                   
Depreciation expense 2,778                   0                          2,778                   

Total $2,496,292 $222,493 $2,718,785

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 5                          
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Heartland Works, Inc.

Statements of Functional Expenses (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Program
Management & 

General Total

Staff salaries and benefits $659,171 $191,765 $850,936
Conference expenses 6,151                   189                      6,340                   
Board expenses 176                      15,373                 15,549                 
Membership and subscriptions 1,206                   1,275                   2,481                   
Publication and outreach 1,420                   1,336                   2,756                   
Travel 4,932                   1,441                   6,373                   
Insurance 7,111                   3,432                   10,543                 
Professional services 4,511                   20,072                 24,583                 
Computer and software 29,238                 15,398                 44,636                 
Phone and internet 16,480                 3,453                   19,933                 
Equipment lease 4,930                   782                      5,712                   
Small equipment purchases 1,671                   117                      1,788                   
Rent 127,885               19,142                 147,027               
Utilities 3,383                   89                        3,472                   
Janitorial services 8,976                   1,180                   10,156                 
Office supplies 5,657                   1,570                   7,227                   
Postage 8                          0                          8                          
Resource center 16,266                 0                          16,266                 
Participant wages and benefits 331                      0                          331                      
Support services 21,721                 0                          21,721                 
Training 701,803               0                          701,803               
Youth provider contracts 804,434               0                          804,434               
Miscellaneous 1,346                   1,155                   2,501                   
Depreciation expense 3,827                   0                          3,827                   

Total $2,432,634 $277,769 $2,710,403
                                                      

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 6                          
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Heartland Works, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
Increase (decrease) in cash:

Cash flows from operating activities:
Changes in net assets 1,845)($                 2,610)($                 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation 2,778                   3,827                   
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 1,751)(                   15,404)(                 
Grants receivable 76,886                 93,319)(                 
Prepaid expenses 2,987                   2,727                   
Accounts payable 75,797)(                 95,885                 
Accrued payroll and related expenses 24,594)(                 219)(                      
Compensated absences and related expenses 219)(                      3,321)(                   
Grant funds received in advance 18,632                 8,081)(                   

Net cash used in operating activities 2,923)(                   20,515)(                 

Changes in cash 2,923)(                   20,515)(                 
Cash - Beginning of the Year 32,514                 53,029                 

Cash - End of the Year 29,591$               32,514$               
                                                        

                                                        

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 7



Heartland Works, Inc. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of Operation 
 
Heartland Works, Inc. (the “Organization”) is a private not-for-profit corporation 
incorporated in 1984.  The Organization administers the Workforce Investment Act (WIA) 
of 1998 program and other grant funding in the 17-county region known as Local Area II of 
Kansas.  The Organization serves as the Administrative Entity, Fiscal Agent, Program 
Operator, and One-Stop Operator for Local Area II WIA Title 1B funds.  Their mission is to 
increase the employment, retention, and earning of its eligible customers and improve the 
quality of the workforce, thereby reducing welfare dependency and enhancing the 
productivity and competitiveness of the employers. 
 
The Organization provides customers with workforce solutions which promote economic 
growth.  Approximately 99% of the Organization’s grant funding is from U.S. Department of 
Labor (primarily Workforce Investment Act) and U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services passed-through Kansas Department of Commerce for the years ended June 30, 2017 
and 2016. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable represent amounts due from various entities for performance on certain 
contracts.  Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
balances outstanding at year-end.  Based on historical relationship with the customers that 
have outstanding balances, management anticipates that all receivables will be collected and 
no allowance has been recorded. 
 
Property and Equipment  
 
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  The Organization 
capitalizes equipment costing $5,000 or more and a useful life of over one year. Depreciation 
is charged to expense using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of each 
asset. 
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Property and Equipment (Continued)  
 
Equipment purchased with grant funds is owned by the Organization while used in the 
program for which it was purchased or in other future authorized programs. However, the 
various funding sources have a reversionary interest in the equipment purchased with grant 
funds.  Its disposition, as well as the ownership of any proceeds therefrom, is subject to 
funding source regulations.  The net book value of grant-funded property and equipment as 
of June 30, 2017 and 2016, is $0 and $2,778, respectively. 
 
Classification of Net Assets 
 
Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and 
changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 
 
Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations or 
where donor imposed stipulations are met in the year of the contribution. 
 
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that 
may or may not be met, either by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time.  
When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are transferred to unrestricted net 
assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.  As 
of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Organization did not have any temporarily restricted net 
assets. 
 
Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that 
they be maintained permanently by the Organization.  Generally, the donors of these assets 
permit the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on any related investments for 
general or specific purposes.  As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Organization did not have 
any permanently restricted net assets. 
 
Revenue Recognition  
 
Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net 
assets, if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized.  
All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or 
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of restrictions.  When a restriction 
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and 
reported in the statement of activities as contributions released from restrictions. 
 
Conditional promises to give are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend 
are substantially met and the promises become unconditional.  
 
Grants are either recorded as contributions or exchange transactions based on criteria 
contained in the grant award. 
 



Heartland Works, Inc. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
 

10 

Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Revenue Recognition (Continued) 
 
A. Grant Awards That Are Contributions 
 

 Grants that qualify as contributions are recorded as invoiced to the funding sources.  
Revenue is recognized in the accounting period when the related allowable expenses are 
incurred.  Amounts received in excess of expenses are reflected as grant funds received in 
advance. 

 
B. Grant Awards That Are Exchange Transactions 
 

 Exchange transactions reimburse based on a predetermined rate for services performed.  
The revenue is recognized in the period the service is performed. 

 
Income Taxes 
 
The Organization is a nonprofit corporation organized under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and is exempt from federal and Kansas income taxes. 
 
The Organization is required to assess whether it is more likely than not that a tax position 
will be sustained upon examination on the technical merits of the position assuming the 
taxing authority has full knowledge of all information.  If the tax position does not meet the 
more likely than not recognition threshold, the benefit of that position is not recognized in 
the financial statements.  The Organization has determined there are no amounts to record as 
assets or liabilities related to uncertain tax positions.   
 
Cost Allocation  
 
Direct costs that can be identified specifically with a final cost objective are directly charged 
to the program benefited.  Joint costs are allocated to benefiting programs using various 
allocation methods depending on the type of joint cost being allocated.  Joint costs are those 
costs incurred for the common benefit of all organization programs that cannot be readily 
identified with a final cost objective. 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 7, 2018, which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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Note 2:  Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The Organization maintains its cash balance in one financial institution.  Balances are 
insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) coverage up to $250,000.  At 
times during the year, balances in this account may exceed the insurance limits.  
Management believes the financial institution has a strong credit ratings and credit risk 
related to these deposits is minimal.  There were no uninsured balances in excess of limits as 
of June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 

Note 3:  Grants Receivable 
 
Grants receivable represent amounts due as of June 30 from Kansas Department of 
Commerce related to the following programs: 
 

 2017 2016 
WIA Youth Activities $95,444 $168,174 
WIA Adult 0 9,785 
WIA Dislocated Worker 10,505 5,907 
Health Profession Opportunity Grant 17,253 0 
KHPOP Impact Study 394 18,167 
Workforce Innovation Fund 1,588 0 
Apprenticeship USA Grant 13 0 
Other 0 50 
   
Totals $125,197 $202,083 

 
Note 4:  Operating Leases 

 
The Organization leases various buildings and office equipment for its administrative and 
field offices under operating lease agreements.  Lease payments for the year ended June 30, 
2017 and 2016, were $251,991 and $250,726, respectively.  The future rental commitments 
under these leases having remaining terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2017, are as 
follows:  
 

2018  $255,757 
2019  201,806 
2020  144,758 
2021  51,340 
2022  51,340 
   
Totals  $705,001 

 
The Organization also subleases space in the various buildings.  Sublease receipts for the 
year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, were $98,987 and $92,986, respectively.  The financial 
statement amounts for rent and equipment leases are reported net of these receipts.  
Anticipated future minimum lease receipts on the Organization’s subleases as of 
June 30, 2017, are $100,344. 
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Note 5:  Retirement Plan 
 
The Organization contributes 5% of the qualified employee wages to a simplified employee 
pension plan.  The plan is open to all employees who have worked for the Organization a 
minimum of six months or have fulfilled the probationary requirements, whichever is later.  
The total pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $34,055 and 
$30,958, respectively. 
 

Note 6:  Related Parties  
 
During the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Organization entered into contracts for 
training services with VAN GO, Inc. and Highland Community College and a lease 
agreement with Kansas Department of Commerce.  Employees of these entities also served 
as board members for the Organization during the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
The contracts were awarded through a competitive bid process and company policies were 
strictly followed.  The board members of the Organization were not involved in the selection 
process and no special consideration was given in awarding the contracts.  During the year 
ended June 30, 2017, the following fees were paid to related parties:  
 

Van Go, Inc. $220,209 
Kansas Department of Commerce 53,442 
Highland Community College 11,086 

 
As of June 30, 2017, the Organization was owed $44,058, from Kansas Department of 
Commerce for shared service expenses. As of June 30, 2016, the organization was owed 
$30,085 from Van Go, Inc.for shared services.  
 
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the following fees were paid to related parties: 
 

Van Go, Inc.  $259,770 
Kansas Department of Commerce  67,111 

 
Note 7:  Grant Commitments  

 
As of June 30, 2017, the Organization had commitments for future funding under various 
grant awards of $1,674,758.  The revenue relating to these grants is not recognized in the 
accompanying financial statements as the revenue recognition is conditional on the 
occurrence of expenditures or the performance of services in the future and availability of 
federal funding. 
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Heartland Works, Inc.
Schedule A-1
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2017

CFDA Number /  
Pass-Through Granter / Pass-Through Entity Passed Through to Federal

Cluster Title Identifying Number Program Name Program Period Subrecipients Expenditures
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AS IDENTIFIED IN THE CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE
Department of Labor
  WIA/WIOA Cluster
    Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce

17.258 PY15-A-002 WIA/WIOA Adult 07/01/15-06/30/17 0 598                             
17.258 FY16-A-002 WIA/WIOA Adult 10/01/15-06/30/17 0 695,141                      
17.258 PY16-A-002 WIA/WIOA Adult 07/01/16-06/30/18 0 172,359                      
17.258 FY17-A-002 WIA/WIOA Adult 10/01/16-06/30/18 0 328,710                      

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA # 17.258 0 1,196,808                   

17.259 PY15-Y-002 WIA/WIOA Youth 06/01/15-05/31/17 268,207 362,632                      
17.259 PY16-Y-002 WIA/WIOA Youth 07/01/16-06/30/18 366,988 464,057                      

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA # 17.259 635,195                      826,689                      

17.278 PY15-DW-002 WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker 07/01/15-06/30/17 0 48,040                        
17.278 FY15-DW-002 WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker 10/01/14-09/30/15 0 5,966                          
17.278 FY16-DW-002 WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker 10/01/15-06/30/17 0 101,150                      

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA # 17.278 0 155,156                      

Total Federal Expenditures WIA Cluster CFDA # 17.258, # 17.259, # 17.278 635,195 2,178,653                   

    Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce
17.283 FY16-16-WIF-002 Worforce Innovation Fund 04/01/16-09/30/19 0 14,506                        

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA # 17.283 0 14,506                        

    Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce
17.285 FY17-APPRN-002 Apprenticeship USA Grant 06/01/16-05/31/18 0 285                             

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA # 17.285 0 285                             

See Independent Auditor's Report. 13



Heartland Works, Inc.
Schedule A-2
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2017

CFDA Grant Passed Through to Federal
Number Number Program Name Program Period Subrecipients Expenditures

ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AS IDENTIFIED IN THE CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE

Department of Health and Human Services
    Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce

93.093 FY16-KHPOP-002 ACA Health Profession Opportunity Grants 09/30/15-09/29/16 0 122,579$                    
93.093 FY17-KHPOP-002 ACA Health Profession Opportunity Grants 09/30/16-9/29/17 0 391,612                      
93.093 FY17-KHPOP-002 ACA Health Profession Opportunity Grants 09/01/16-9/29/17 0 9,300                          

Total Federal Expenditures CFDA # 93.093 0 523,491                      

TOTAL FEDERAL PROGRAMS 635,195$                    2,716,935$                 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note 3 - Indirect Cost Allocation
Heartland Works, Inc. has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

See Independent Auditor's Report. 14

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal award activity of Heartland Works, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year 
ended June 30, 2017. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Heartland Works, 
Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of Heartland Works, Inc.

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business 
to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.  
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Heartland Works, Inc. 
Topeka, Kansas 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the 
standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Heartland Works, Inc. (a nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the related statements 
of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 7, 2018. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Heartland Works, Inc.’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Heartland Works, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Heartland Works, Inc.’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Heartland Works, Inc.’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly we do not express such an opinion.  The results of 
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Wipfli LLP 
 
 
February 7, 2018 
Madison, Wisconsin 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements for Each Major 
Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Heartland Works, Inc. 
Topeka, Kansas 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Heartland Works, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017.  
Heartland Works, Inc.’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.   
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Heartland Works, Inc.’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit 
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirement for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about Heartland Works, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Heartland Works, Inc.’s compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, Heartland Works, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs 
for the year ended June 30, 2017.  
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of Heartland Works, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered Heartland Works, Inc.’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to 
determine our auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Heartland Works, Inc.’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Wipfli LLP 
 
 
February 7, 2018 
Madison, Wisconsin 
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Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 
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Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued? Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weaknesses identified? No 
 Significant deficiencies identified? No 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs:  
 Material weaknesses identified? No 
 Significant deficiencies identified? No 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major program Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in  
accordance with the Uniform Guidance [2 CFR 200.516(a)]? No 

Identification of major federal programs: 

 Name of Federal Major Program or Cluster CFDA No. 

 WIA/WIOA Cluster 17.258, 17.259, 17.278 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 
 Federal $750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 

 
Section II - Financial Statement Findings 
 
None 
 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
None 
 
Section IV - Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 
 
None
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Statements and Supplemental Information 

 
 

Board of Directors 
Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. 
Kansas City, Kansas 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc., 
which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements 
of activities, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 

 Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
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Board of Directors 
Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. 
Page  2  
 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the changes in 
its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters  Supplemental Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31, 2017, 
on our consideration of Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc.
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Local Workforce Investment 
Area III, Inc.  
 

  
Overland Park, Kansas 
January 31, 2017 



 
Statement of Financial Position 

June 30, 2016 and 2015 

 

 
See the notes to financial statements 
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2016 2015

Assets
Current Assets
Cash (Note 1) 46,586$     221,645$    
Account Receivable (Note 2) 40,510       19,718       
Grant Receivable (Note 2) 223,382     422,975      
Prepayments 3,097        -            

Total Current Assets 313,575     664,338      
Fixed Assets
Furniture & Equipment (Net of $526,451 
Accumulated Depreciation)  (Note 3) -           1,985         

Total Fixed Assets -           1,985         
Total Assets 313,575$ 666,323$  

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable (Note 4) 146,408$   420,722$    
Accrued Payroll and Benefits 136,885     198,032      
Payroll Taxes 6,936        9,712         
Unclaimed Property (Note 1) -           922            
Accrued Vacation 23,346       20,558       
Deferred Revenue -           14,392       

Total Current Liabilities 313,575     664,338      

Net Assets- Unrestricted -           1,985         
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 313,575$ 666,323$  

 



 
Statement of Activities 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 

 
 

 
See the notes to financial statements 
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2016 2015
Revenue

Grant Revenue 4,660,588$     4,996,827$    
Total Income 4,660,588     4,996,827   

Expenses
Program Expenses (Note 10)

WIOA Programs Expenses 3,044,770       3,046,495     
KHPOP Program Expenses 149,171          340,259        
H1-B Job Training 1,111,446       1,328,678     
Disability Employment Initiative 36,357           4,997           
Total Program Expenses 4,341,744     4,720,429   

Administrative and General (Note 10) 320,829        306,083      

Total Expenses 4,662,573     5,026,512   

Net Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets (1,985)           (29,685)       

Net Assets
Beginning of the Year- Unrestricted 1,985            31,670        
Ending of the Year- Unrestricted -$              1,985$        

 

 

 



 
Statement Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 

 

 
See the notes to financial statements 
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NOTE 1:  NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Organization 

Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. (the Organization) was incorporated in 2003 in the State of 
Kansas following the passage of the Workforce Investment Act (WIA) of 1998 (replaced by Workforce 
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) effective July 22, 2014). The Organization serves as a Local 
Workforce Investment Board (LWIB) for Wyandotte, Johnson and Leavenworth counties in the state of 
Kansas. The purpose of the Organization is to develop and manage employment and training programs 
targeted to increase the employment, retention, earnings, and occupational skill attainment of workers, 
particularly those individuals with barriers to employment, so they can move into good jobs and careers 
and provide businesses with the skilled workforces needed. 

Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Under the accrual basis of accounting, 
expenses are matched with revenues by recognizing in the period in which the related revenue is 
recognized on the income statement, rather than when they are paid. Revenues are recognized when they 
are earned and realized or realizable. The balances on the statement of financial position are also affected 
at the time expenses are incurred (increase in Accounts Payable, decrease in Cash, or decrease in Prepaid 
Expenses) and revenues are earned and realized or realizable (increase in Cash or Accounts Receivable). 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For cash flow purposes the Organization considers investments with original maturity less than three 
months as cash equivalents. On June 30, 2016 the organization had cash in the amount of $177,662 in 
demand deposit account at Commerce Bank, n.a. before outstanding checks in the amount of $131,076 is 
cleared. As of June 30, 2015, the organization had cash in the amount of $221,645 after outstanding 
checks in the amount of $50,699 are cleared.  The FDIC insurance coverage for an entity per financial 
institute is $250,000. 

Property and Equipment 

are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation is provided using the straight-line 
method over the estimated lives of the assets.  The estimated useful lives for furniture and equipment 
range from three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term 
or their respective estimated useful lives.  

Equipment purchased with grant funds is owned by the Organization while it is being used in the program 
for which it was purchased or in other future programs as authorized by the grantor. Grantors have a 
reversionary interest in the equipment purchased with grant funds. The disposition of these assets and 
ownership of any proceeds received is subject to  approval.  

Government Grants 

Supports funded in the form of government grants are recognized as the Organization performs the 
contracted services or incurs outlays eligible for reimbursement under the grant agreements. Grant 
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activities and outlays are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting agency and, as a result of such 
audit, adjustments could be required.  

Income Taxes  

The Organization is a not-for-profit public charity that is exempt from Federal Income taxes under 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.   

The Organization has adopted the accounting of uncertainty in income taxes as required by the Income 
Taxes topic (Topic 740) of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards 
Codification (ASC). Topic 740 requires the Organization to determine whether a tax position is more 
likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority, including resolution 
of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax 
benefit to be recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is more than fifty percent 
likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement which could result in the Organization recording a tax 
liability that would reduce its net assets. However, the Organization does not have any unrelated 
business taxable income; accordingly, no provision for taxation is made as of June 30, 2016.  

UNCLAIMED PROPERTY 

The Organization classifies checks issued to program participants in unclaimed property account if the 
checks are not claimed within 180 days after the issuance date.  

 
NOTE 2: RECEIVABLES 

Grant receivables as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 represents reimbursement receivables for incurred costs 
relative to WIOA, KHPOP, H1B Job Training and DEI programs. The Organization periodically submits 
reimbursement requests to KDOC and MCC for eligible expenses incurred. The Organization also shares 
various costs with KDOC. Accounts receivable as of June 30, represents unpaid shared costs with KDOC. 
The following table shows the receivables as of June 30: 

Grant Receivables: 
   

 Entity Program 2016 
 

2015 
 KDOC WIOA  $    203,071  

 
 $    114,622 

 
 

KHPOP             8,142  
 

         6,054 
 

 
H-1B Job Training Grant 7,364  

 
26,400  

  Rapid Response 3,593  - 
 

 
DEI 1,212  

 
            2,333   

 
  

       223,382  
 

     149,409  
 MCC MCC-H-1B        - 

 
       273,566  

 
 

Total Grant Receivable  $    223,382 
 

 $   422,975  
Accounts Receivables: 

   

 KDOC Cost Sharing  $      40,510  
 

 $    19,718  
 

NOTE 3: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment at June 30 consists of:       2016          2015  
Furniture, Fixture and Equipment      $526,451 $526,451 
Less accumulated depreciation  Furniture, Fixture & Equipment  (526,451) (524,466) 
Net Furniture, Fixture and Equipment    $            -      1,985 
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Leasehold improvements      $573,171 $573,171 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization    (573,171) (573,171) 
Net Leasehold Improvement      $            -  $           - 
 

Total Property and Equipment     $            - $   1,985 

NOTE 4: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

The accounts payable balance as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 represent unpaid invoices of vendors in the 
amount of $146,408 and $420,722, respectively.   

NOTE 5: CONCENTRATION RISK 

WIOA program grants. A significant 
reduction in the level of this grant  

NOTE 6: OPERATING LEASE 

The Organization leases its corporate office under operating lease agreement beginning on November 1, 
2012 through February 28, 2019. The lease agreement is contingent upon the Organization receiving WIOA 
funds. During the fiscal year 2016, the monthly rental charge for this lease for the first four months of the 
year was $2,887.50 and $1,375 per month for the rest of the fiscal year. The Organization also entered into 
operating office lease agreements for its American Job Centers (AJCs) located at Leavenworth, Wyandotte 
and Johnson Counties, Kansas. These leases are cancellable in the event the organization is unable to secure 
WIOA funds. The Organization also sublet the portions of the office spaces to KDOC. 

During the current year, the Organization incurred rent expense in the amount of $402,410, of which 
$88,984 was reimbursed by the KDOC and others for costs shared. Shared costs are excluded from the 
financial reports. 

Future lease commitments due under these office lease agreements for subsequent years are as follows:  

 
Year End 

 
Johnson 
County 

 
 
Leavenworth 

 
 
Wyandotte 

 
 

Corporate 
Office 

 
 

Total 

           
June 30, 2017 

 
$ 284,679   

 
$ 32,400  

 
$ 61,662  

 
$ 16,500 

 
$395,241 

June 30, 2018 
 

118,616 
 

10,800  
 

64,582  
 

16,500 
 

210,498 
June 30, 2019 

 
-0-  

 
-0-  

 
67,503  

 
11,000 

 
78,503 

June 30, 2020 
 

-0-  
 

-0- 
 

46,300  
 

-0- 
 

46,300 
June 30, 2021  -0-  -0-  -0-  -0-  -0- 

Total  
 

$ 403,295 
 

$ 43,200 
 

$240,047 
 

$ 44,000 
 

$730,542 
 

NOTE 7: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Organization has a 401K retirement plan covering its employees. The Organization contributes 5.0% 
of each eligible employee s salary annually. Contributions to the plan during the fiscal year ended December 
31, 2016 was $19,924. 
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NOTE 8: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 

The operations of the Organization are funded primarily with federal grants passed-through the Kansas 
Department of Commerce (KDOC) on cost reimbursement basis. KDOC also uses facilities leased by the 
Organization and shares a portion of the administrative costs. The organization periodically bills KDOC 
for program expenses and the shared costs. During the year, the Organization received program cost 
reimbursements in the amount of $3,637,462 and $88,984 for cost sharing.  

NOTE 9: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 31, 2017, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

NOTE 10: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES  

For the year ended June 30, 2016, functional expenses are made up of the following components: 

Description 

 WIOA 
Programs  DEI  KHPOP

 H1B Job 
Training  

 
Managemen
t  & General  Grand Total 

Salary and benefit 1,369,005$     17,783$    78,100$      76,565$          225,492$     1,766,945$     
Payroll taxes 108,651          1,553        6,837          7,694              17,548         142,283          
Temporary staff 1,831              -            -              915                 -               2,746              
Rent 285,664          800           -              8,080              14,384         308,928          
Telephone 73,809            191           -              97                   6,136           80,233            
Contract services 23,867            238           -              54,936            23,578         102,619          
Security 25,350            14             -              14.00              174              25,552            
Insurance 31,814            -            -              -                 (554)             31,260            
Janitorial 28,374            -            -              -                 -               28,374            
Utilities 34,185            -            -              -                 -               34,185            
Copier leases & service 18,876            -            -              -                 2,333           21,209            
Supplies & materials 11,649            -            -              (50)                 1,652           13,251            
Overhead 159,576          -            -              -                 -               159,576          
Performance incentive 129,272          -            -              -                 -               129,272          
Staff training & travel 23,688            989           282             358                 4,534           29,851            
Client training & related expenses 491,888          5,299        50,357        943,795          -               1,491,339       
Work experience 165,790          9,283        -              13,381            -               188,454          
Supportive services 46,240            105           11,700        -                 -               58,045            
Other expenses (1,140)            102           1,895          5,558              20,642         27,057            
Postage 2,090              -            -              49                   543              2,682              
Premise expense 14,291            -            -              -                 (752)             13,539            
Dues -                     -            -              54                   3,134           3,188              
Depreciation expense -                     -            -              -                 1,985           1,985              

Total 3,044,770$  36,357$  149,171$  1,111,446$  320,829$   4,662,573$   

 
 
 
 
 



.  
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 
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For the year ended June 30, 2015, functional expenses are made up of the following components: 
 

Description 
WIOA 

Program DEI KHPOP
H1B Job 
Training 

Management 
& General 
Expenses Grand Total 

Salary and benefit 1,418,376$    4,376$       129,556$       111,924$    168,112$        1,832,344$    
Payroll taxes 104,286         298            9,891             7,816          13,302            135,593         
Temporary staff 2,024             -             -                -              -                  2,024             
Rent 323,000         -             (300)              8,876          14,890            346,466         
Telephone 66,146           -             -                208             4,468              70,822           
Contract services 46,514           -             600                88,399        25,499            161,012         
Security 30,405           -             -                -              449                 30,854           
Insurance 26,789           -             -                -              5,825              32,614           
Janitorial 32,576           -             -                -              -                  32,576           
Utilities 55,920           -             -                -              55,920           
Copier leases & service 18,836           -             -                -              2,020              20,856           
Equipment 29                  -             -                -              1,685              1,714             
Supplies & materials 20,636           42              -                48               476                 21,202           
Overhead 159,551         -             -                -              159,551         
Performance incentives 122,244         -             -                -              122,244         
Staff training & travel 27,066           251            287.00           4,980          8,734              41,318           
Client training & related expenses 493,659         -             2,642.00        1,070,031   -                  1,566,332      
Work experience 43,456           -             -                13,734        -                  57,190           
Supportive services 45,603           -             194,583         14,119        -                  254,305         
Marketing, job fair and advertisement -                -             -                430             13,791            14,221           
Postage 3,919             -             -                -              240                 4,159             
Dues -                -             -                118             1,303              1,421             
Other program expenses 5,460             30              3,000             7,995          15,604            32,089           
Depreciation -                -             -                -              29,685            29,685           

Total 3,046,495$    4,997$       340,259$       1,328,678$ 306,083$        5,026,512$    

Program Expenses 

 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
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1. General 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents all activities of federal programs of 
the Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. All federal awards passed through the Kansas Department 
of Commerce and other entities are included on the schedule. 

2. Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented using the accrual basis of 
accounting described in Note 1 of the financial statement. The information in this schedule is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Guidance. Therefore, some amounts 
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic 
financial statements. 

3. Cluster Program 
A cluster of programs means Federal programs with different Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 
numbers which are closely related programs that share common compliance requirements. The Workforce 
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) program is considered a cluster. 

4. Sub-recipient 
Of the total federal expenditures presented in this schedule, the following were provided to two Subrecipients: 

 
 

Federal Agency/Pass through 
Agency Program CFDA# Amount 

USDOL/KDOC WIOA Adult 17.258 961,925$        

WIOA Youth 17.259 820,619          

WIOA Dislocated Workers 17.278 500,418          

Rapid Response 17.278 44,188            

KHPOP 93.093 84,442            

DEI 17.283 7,027              

Total Grant Passed-Through KODC 2,418,619$   

USDOL/MCC H1B Job Training Grant 17.278 42,394           

Total Grant Passed to DWS 2,461,013$   

USDOL/MCC H1B Job Training Grant 17.278 388,228$      

Total Grant Passed to the Subrecipients 2,849,241$   

Passed through to Dynamic Workforce Solutions

Passed through to Full Employmnet Council, Inc.
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over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With 
Government Auditing Standards 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. 
Kansas City, Kansas 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Local Workforce 
Investment Area III, Inc. which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and the 
related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 31 2017. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Local Workforce 
Investment Area III, Inc.
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Local 
Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness o  
  
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 

financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc.
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Board of Directors 
Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. 
 
Page -2  
 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

   
Overland Park, Kansas 
January 31, 2017 
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Independent Auditors  Report on Compliance for Each Major Program 
And on Internal Control over Compliance Required By the Uniform Guidance 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. 
Kansas City, Kansas 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc.
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc.  for the year ended June 30, 
2016. Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc.
of  
 

 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 
 

 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Local Workforce Investment Area 
III, Inc.
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Local Workforce 
Investment Area III, Inc.
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Local Workforce Investment Area 
III, Inc. compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
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Board of Directors 
Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. 
 
Page -2  
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Local Workforce 
Investment Area III, Inc.
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Local Workforce 
Investment Area III, Inc.  
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Overland Park, Kansas 
January 31, 2017 



Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 
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A. Summary  
 
1.  

 Unmodified   Qualified  Adverse  Disclaimer 
 

2. The independent auditors  report on internal control over financial reporting described: 
   Significant deficiency(ies) noted considered material weakness(es)?       Yes   No 
   Significant deficiency(ies) noted that are not considered  
    material weakness(es)?             Yes   No 

 
3. Noncompliance considered material to the financial statement was  

disclosed by the auditor?        Yes   No 
 

4. The independent auditors  report on internal control over compliance with requirements 
applicable to major federal programs described: 
   Significant deficiency(ies) noted considered material weakness(es)?       Yes   No 
   Significant deficiency(ies) noted that are not considered  
    material weakness(es)?             Yes   No 

 
5. The opinion expressed in the independent auditors  report on compliance with requirements 

applicable to major federal programs was: 
 Unmodified   Qualified  Adverse  Disclaimer 

 
6. The audit disclosed findings relative to the major federal award program required to be reported 

by Uniform Guidance?        Yes   No 
 

7. The programs tested as a major federal program were: 
 
Cluster/Programs         CFDA Number 

 
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Cluster: 
    WIOA Adult Program      17.258 
    WIOA Youth Program      17.259 
    WIOA Dislocated Workers Program    17.278 
H-1B Job Training Grants      17.268 

 
8. The threshold used to distinguish between Types A and B programs was $300,000. 

 
9. Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. qualified as a low-risk auditee as that term is 

defined in Uniform Guidance?       Yes   No 
 
B. Findings Required to be Reported by Government Auditing Standards on Financial Statement: - 

 
Findings: None 
 
 
 



Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 
 

- 18 - 
 

C. Findings Required to be Reported by Uniform Guidance on Major Federal Award Programs:- 
 

Findings: None 



Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
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Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings Required to be Reported According to Uniform 

 
 
Findings and status: No matters are reportable. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
Board of Directors 
Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc. 
Wichita, Kansas 
 
Report on Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, 
Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, 
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc. as of June 30, 2017, and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.  
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis, and is not a required 
part of the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.  In our opinion, the information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 8, 
2018, on our consideration of Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Workforce Alliance of South Central 
Kansas, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Workforce 
Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
Wipfli LLP 
 
 
Madison, Wisconsin 
March 8, 2018 
 
 



Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.

Statement of Financial Position
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Current assets:
Cash 484,968$      
Grants receivable 382,089        
Related-party receivable 11,149          
Prepaid expenses 73,778          

   Total current assets 951,984        

Property and equipment, net 109,232        

TOTAL ASSETS 1,061,216$   

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 148,788$      
Accrued payroll and related expenses 138,412        
Compensated absences and related expenses 158,185        
Funds held for others 172,598        
Grant funds received in advance 120,178        
Capital lease, current portion 26,740          

   Total current liabilities 764,901        

Capital lease, non-current portion 11,638          

Total liabilities 776,539        

Net assets:
Unrestricted 284,677        

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 1,061,216$   
                     

Liabilities and Net Assets

Assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 3



Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenue:
Grant revenue 5,313,712$   
Program income 80,923          

      Total revenue 5,394,635     

Expenses:
Program activities:

Workforce Investment Program 2,915,073     
Senior Community Services Employment Program 678,453        
Health Profession Opportunity Project 388,934        
H-1B Grant 349               
KEEP H-1B Grant 250,775        
Community Services Block Grant 50,816          
Employment Service 150,223        
Reentry Employment Opportunities 3,948            
GOALS 67,963          
WSU Robotics Innitiative 47,737          
Bulter Comm. College Trade Act Adjustment 80,080          
Workforce Innovation Fund 39,969          
Apprenticeship USA 15,906          
Other non-Federal programs 371,430        

   Total program activities 5,061,656     
                     

Management and general 311,793        
                     

      Total expenses 5,373,449     
                     

Change in net assets 21,186          
Net assets - Beginning of the year 263,491        
Net assets - End of the year 284,677$      

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 4



Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Management
Program & General Total

Expenses:
Wages 2,211,305$   139,960$      2,351,265$   
Payroll taxes 173,458        10,501          183,959        
Benefits 398,627        5,713            404,340        
Rent 357,404        8,244            365,648        
Building enhancement 71                 71                 
Security 30,866          996               31,862          
Utilities 22,943          2,367            25,310          
Insurance 29,371          1,258            30,629          
Office supplies 54,799          624               55,423          
Office equipment / furniture 8,469            0                   8,469            
Postage 1,878            220               2,098            
Dues and subscriptions 14,873          8,175            23,048          
Conference 27,645          18,039          45,684          
Job fairs 28,482          0                   28,482          
Meetings 20,992          4,513            25,505          
Outreach 28,781          5,989            34,770          
Staff development 5,446            898               6,344            
Travel 27,992          2,030            30,022          
Contract services 173,837        102,266        276,103        
Miscellaneous 10,472)(          (10,472)         
Incentives 16,590          16,590          
Education and training 1,229,874     1,229,874     
Supportive services 141,105        141,105        
Depreciation expense 57,104          57,104          
Interest expense 5,216            5,216            
Non-federal pass-thru funds 5,000            5,000            

Total expenses 5,061,656$   311,793$      5,373,449$   

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 5



Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Increase (decrease) in cash:
Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets 21,186$         

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 57,104           
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Grants receivable 45,997           
Related-party receivable 6,156)(             
Prepaid expenses 9,560             
Accounts payable 43,710)(           
Accrued payroll and related expenses 12,594           
Compensated absences and related expenses 23,923           
Funds held for others 19,345)(           
Grant funds received in advance 120,178         

Net cash provided by operating activities 221,331         

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payment on capital lease obligation 72,343)(           

Net cash used in financing activities 72,343)(           

Change in cash 148,988         
Cash - Beginning of the year 335,980         

Cash - End of the year 484,968$       
                      

Schedule of other cash activity
Cash paid for interest expense 5,216$           

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 6



Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of Operations 
 
Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc. (the “Organization”) is a tax-exempt, nonprofit 
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The Organization incorporated in 
2001 following the passage of the Workforce Investment Act (WIA) of 1998.  As the Local Workforce 
Investment Board (LWIB) for Butler, Cowley, Harper, Kingman, Sedgwick, and Sumner counties in the 
state of Kansas, the primary duties of the Organization are to manage federal job training funds, operate 
One-Stop Workforce Centers and coordinate the public workforce system in South Central Kansas.  The 
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) became effective July 1, 2015, and replaces WIA.  
The LWIB transitioned to the Local Workforce Development Board (LWDB) on that date and continues 
to operate programs and One-Stop centers across South Central Kansas.  
 
The Organization's services are funded primarily through WIA/WIOA.  A significant reduction in the level 
of this support could have an adverse effect on the Organization's programs and services.  
Approximately 83% of grant funding is direct from the United States of Labor or federal pass-through 
funds received from the State of Kansas Department of Commerce. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
All financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash Held for Others 
 
The Organization manages activities associated with the Regional Economic Area Partnership (REAP) 
program.  The cash is held separately in a cash account with a corresponding liability as ownership of 
the funds rests with the REAP organization. 
 
Related-party Receivable 
 
Related-party receivable represents costs shared with partner agencies for office spaces and other 
services that were requested for reimbursement.  No estimate is made for doubtful receivables, as the 
Organization believes they are fully collectible. 



Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment for which title passes to the Organization is capitalized and stated at cost.  
When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are 
removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in operations for the period.  
The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to operations as incurred.  Depreciation is provided by 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.  The useful lives for computer 
equipment, software licenses, and office equipment are 3, 10, and 5 years, respectively. Whenever 
events or changes in circumstances occur that indicate the carrying amount of long-lived assets may not 
be recoverable, management reviews the assets for possible impairment.  Management estimated there 
is no material impairment at June 30, 2017. 
 
Property and equipment purchased with grant funds are owned by the Organization while used in the 
program for which it was purchased or in other future authorized programs.  However, the various 
funding sources have a reversionary interest in the equipment purchased with grant funds.  Its 
disposition, as well as the ownership of any proceeds therefrom, is subject to funding source regulations. 
The net book value of grant-funded property and equipment as of June 30, 2017, is $109,232.   
 
Classification of Net Assets 
 
Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence 
of donor-imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes therein are 
classified and reported as follows: 
 
Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. 
 
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or may 
not be met, either by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time.  When a restriction expires, 
temporarily restricted net assets are transferred to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement 
of activities as net assets released from restrictions.  As of June 30, 2017, the Organization does not 
have any temporarily restricted net assets. 
 
Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be 
maintained permanently by the Organization.  Generally, the donors of these assets permit the 
Organization to use all or part of the income earned on any related investments for general or specific 
purposes.  As of June 30, 2017, the Organization does not have any permanently restricted net assets. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the 
restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized.  All other contributions are 
reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the 
restrictions.  When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted 
net assets and reported in the statement of activities as contributions released from restriction.
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Conditional promises to give are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are 
substantially met and the promises become unconditional. 
 
Support funded by grants is recognized as the Organization performs the contracted services or incurs 
outlays eligible for reimbursement under the grant agreements.  The program activities and the related 
outlays are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting agency.  Consequently, such audit may 
mandate adjustment.  Grants are either recorded as contributions or exchange transactions based on 
criteria contained in the grant award. 
 
A. Grant Awards That Are Contributions 
 
Grants that qualify as contributions are recorded as invoiced to the funding sources.  Revenue is 
recognized in the accounting period when the related allowable expenses are incurred.  Amounts 
received in excess of expenses are reflected as grant funds received in advance. 
 
B. Grant Awards That Are Exchange Transactions 
 
Exchange transactions reimburse based on a predetermined rate for services performed.  The revenue 
is recognized in the period the service is performed. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Organization is a nonprofit organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
is exempt from Federal and Kansas income taxes. 
 
The Organization is required to assess whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be 
sustained upon examination on the technical merits of the position assuming the taxing authority has full 
knowledge of all information.  If the tax position does not meet the more likely than not recognition 
threshold, the benefit of that position is not recognized in the financial statements.  The Organization has 
determined there are no amounts to record as assets or liabilities related to uncertain tax positions. 
 
Cost Allocation 
 
Direct costs that can be identified specifically with a final cost objective are directly charged to the 
program benefited.  Joint costs are allocated to benefiting programs using various allocation methods 
depending on the type of joint cost being allocated.  Joint costs are those costs incurred for the common 
benefit of all of the Organization’s programs, which cannot be readily identified with a final cost objective. 
 
Functional Expenses 
 
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional 
basis in the statements of activities and functional expenses.  Accordingly, certain costs have been 
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.



Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
 

10 

Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 8, 2018, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
 
Note 2:  Cash and Cash Held for Others 
 
The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposits that, at times, may exceed federally insured limits.  
The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts.  The Organization believes it is not 
exposed to any significant credit risk on cash deposits.  The following table represents the detail cash 
balances, as of June 30, 2017: 
 

Bank account:   
WIOA cash  $172,407 
Non-Federal cash  139,963 
   
Total bank accounts  312,370 
   
Funds held for others:   
REAP  172,243 
Flexible spending-employees  355 
   
Total funds held for others  172,598 
   
Total cash  $484,968 

 
Note 3:  Grants Receivable 
 
Grants receivable represents reimbursable expenditures incurred and accrued for WIA/WIOA program 
and other grant funds.  Management does not believe that estimate for doubtful receivables would be 
necessary since such funds are awarded by the federal, state, and other local governments and are 
expected to be fully reimbursed.  As of June 30, 2017, the Organization reported the following 
outstanding receivables: 
 

Kansas Department of Commerce  $140,264 
U.S. Department of Labor  3,097 
REAP  4,841 
Other  233,887 
   
Total  $382,089 
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Note 4:  Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment consists of computer equipment, software licenses and office equipment.  For 
the year ended June 30, 2017, depreciation expense was $57,104. The net book value of property and 
equipment as of June 30, 2017, was $109,232.  
 
Note 5:  Capital Lease Obligations 
 
The Organization leases office equipment from Lease Finance Partners.  The lease is for 60 months and 
requires monthly payments of $1,234, with an interest rate of 12.965%, and is due April 2019.  The 
Organization also entered in a lease agreement with Cisco for equipment.  The lease is for 36 months 
and requires quarterly payments of $15,379, with an interest rate of 1.987%, and is due September 
2017.  The minimum future lease payments under the capital leases as of June 30, 2017, for the next 
two years in the aggregate are: 
 

2018  $29,214 
2019  12,341 
   
Total minimum lease payments  41,555 
Less: amount representing interest  (3,177) 
   
Total  $38,378 

 
Less: current portion  $26,740 

          
Total long-term portion  $11,638 

 
The net book value of assets recorded under the capital lease as of June 30, 2017, was $98,808.  
Interest paid on the capital leases for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $5,216. 
 
Note 6:  Operating Leases 
 
The Organization leases corporate office space in Wichita under two operating leases.  One lease is 
through June 2018, for the corporate office space and the other through June 2019.  Both of these lease 
agreements are contingent upon the Organization receiving WIOA funds.  
 
The Organization can terminate either office space lease for material breach, lack of funding, or for 
convenience.  If the Organization terminates the corporate office space leases for convenience, the fee 
to take such action is as follows. 
 

May 1, 2017 to April 30, 2018  $300,000 
May 1, 2018 to April 30, 2019  $150,000 

 
The Organization subleases portions of its office space to other unrelated entities under various 
agreements which will in expire June 2018, and require annual rentals of $103,310.  The lease for the 
corporate office space was renegotiated for period start of July 2016.  Rent expense for the corporate 
office space net of sublease reimbursement for the year ended June 30, 2017, was $91,748. 
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Note 6:  Operating Leases (Continued) 
 
The Organization also leases four facilities housing One-Stop Workforce Centers and office space under 
operating lease agreements expiring during the year end July 30, 2019, and June 30, 2020.  These 
agreements are also contingent upon the Organization receiving WIOA funds.  Rent expense for the 
four One-Stop Workforce Centers, net of sublease reimbursement for the year ended June 30, 2017, 
was $273,900. 
 
Future minimum lease payments on leases with noncancelable terms beyond one year are as follows: 
 

2018  $551,107 
2019  432,812 
2020  405,976 
2021  30,095 
   
Total  $1,419,990 

 
Note 7:  Retirement Plan 
 
The Organization has a 403(b) plan covering substantially all employees.  The Organization 
matches 100% of employee contributions up to a maximum of 3% of compensation once 
employed for six months.  The Organization contributed $44,814, to this Plan for the year ended 
June 30, 2017. 
 
Note 8:  Related Parties 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Organization entered into contracts for training services with 
the following entities.  Officials of these entities also served as board members for the Organization, 
through June 30, 2017.  The contracts were awarded through a competitive bid process and the 
Organization’s policies were strictly followed.  The board members of the Organization were not involved 
in the selection process and no special consideration was given in awarding the contracts.  During the 
year ended June 30, 2017, the following amounts are reported in the Organization’s financial 
statements:  
 

 
Accounts 
Payable 

Revenue from 
Fees 

   
Butler Community College $1,229 $39,422 
Cerebral Palsy Research Foundation 0 13,880 
Greater Wichita YMCA 0 5,008 
High Touch Technologies 0 520 
Plumbers & Pipefitters 0 3,250 
Vornado Air LLC 0 2,807 
Wichita Electrical Joint Appr. Training Center 0 28,465 
Wichita Area Technical College 20,233 97,473 
   
Total $21,462 $190,825 
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Note 9:  Grant Award Commitments 
 
At June 30, 2017, the Organization had received future funding commitments under various grants.  The 
remaining unspent amount of these commitments is approximately $7,700,000.  These commitments are 
not recognized in the accompanying financial statements as revenue and receivables as they are 
conditional awards. 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Supplementary Information 
 
 
 
 



Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.
Schedule A-1
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through Entity Passed Through Federal
Grantor / Program or Cluster Title Number Identifying Number Program Year to Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through Kansas Department of Children & Family

GOALS 10.596 EES-2006-E&P-03 01/25/16-01/24/19 -$                          67,963$            

TOTAL U.S. Department of Agriculture 67,963              

U.S. Department of Defense
Direct Funding

WSU Robotics Innitiative 12.630 (not provided) 05/01/16-05/01/18 47,737              

Total U.S. Department of Defense 47,737              

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce

Disability Employment Initiative 17.207 14-DEI-004 10/01/14-03/31/18 150,223            

Senior Community Service Employment 17.235 PY16-SCSEP-004 07/01/16-06/30/17 739,086            

WIA/WIOA Cluster
WIA/WIOA Adult Program 17.258 FY16-A-004 10/01/15-06/30/17 249,274            
WIA/WIOA Adult Program 17.258 PY16-A-004 07/01/16-06/30/18 192,115            
WIA/WIOA Adult Program 17.258 FY17-A-004 10/01/16-06/30/18 896,299            

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 17.258 1,337,688         

WIA/WIOA Youth Program 17.259 PY15-Y-004 04/01/15-06/30/17 344,560            
WIA/WIOA Youth Program 17.259 PY16-Y-004 04/01/16-06/30/18 831,255            

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 17.259 1,175,815         

WIA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY14-RRAA-004 07/01/15-06/30/16 100)(                   
WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY16-DW-004 10/01/15-06/30/17 129,311            
WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY17-DW-004 10/01/16-06/30/18 285,272            
WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY15-RR-2-004 10/01/15-09/30/16 18,581              
WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY16-RR-004 10/01/16-09/30/17 60,128              
WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 PY16-DW-004 07/01/16-06/30/18 78,545              

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 17.278 571,737            

Total Federal Expenditures - WIOA Cluster (CFDA 17.258, 17.259, 17.278) 3,085,240         

Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce
H-1B Job Training Grants 17.268 12-H1B-04 11/14/11-11/30/15 349                   

Direct Funding
H-1B Job Training Grants (KAMP) 17.268 HG-30145-17-60-A-20 01/01/17-12/31/20 250,775            

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 17.268 251,124            

Passed through Kansas Big Brothers/Big Sisters
Reentry Employment Opportunities 17.270 (not provided) (not provided) 3,948                

See Independent Auditor's Report. 14



Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.
Schedule A-2
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through Entity Passed Through Federal
Grantor / Program or Cluster Title Number Identifying Number Program Year to Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, continued
Passed through Butler Community College

Bulter Comm. College Trade Act Adjustment 17.282 Butler TAACCCT 11/01/16-09/30/17 -$                          59,357$            
Passed through Wichita Area Technical College

Kansas Training 17.282 (not provided) 02/01/16-02/01/18 20,723              

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 17.282 80,080              

Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce
Workforce Innovation Fund 17.283 FY16-WIF-004 04/01/16-09/30/19 39,969              

Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce
Apprenticeship USA 17.285 FY17-APPRN-004 06/01/16-05/31/18 15,906              

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 4,365,576         

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce

ACA Health Profession Opportunity Grants 93.093 FY16-KHPOP-002 10/01/15-09/30/16 114,579            
ACA Health Profession Opportunity Grants 93.093 FY17-KHPOP-002 10/01/16-09/30/17 271,321            
KHPOP Impact Study 93.093 (not provided) (not provided) 3,034                

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 93.093 388,934            

Passed through City of Wichita
Community Services Block Grant 93.569 2015-2016 11/01/15-10/30/16 50,816              

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 93.569 50,816              

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 439,750            

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS -$                          4,921,026$       

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note 3 - Indirect Cost Rate

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal grant activity of Workforce Alliance of South 
Central Kansas, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2017. The information in this schedule is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards  (Uniform Guidance).   Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Workforce 
Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of Workforce 
Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles 
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts 
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc. did not elect to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform 
G id

See Independent Auditor's Report. 15
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc. 
Wichita, Kansas 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Workforce Alliance of South 
Central Kansas, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of 
June 30, 2017, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year 
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
March 8, 2018. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Workforce Alliance of 
South Central Kansas, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.'s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.’s internal control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, 
Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and in considering Workforce Alliance of South Central 
Kansas, Inc.’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 
 
 
 
Wipfli LLP 
 
 
Madison, Wisconsin 
March 8, 2018 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on 
Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc. 
Wichita, Kansas 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.'s compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance 
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Workforce Alliance of South Central 
Kansas, Inc.'s  major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017.  Workforce Alliance of South 
Central Kansas, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section 
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of it federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Workforce Alliance of South 
Central Kansas, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those 
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.'s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program.  However, our audit does not provide legal determination Workforce Alliance of South 
Central Kansas, Inc.'s compliance. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with 
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas Inc. is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above.  In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Workforce Alliance of 
South Central Kansas, Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for 
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance 
with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Workforce Alliance of South Central Kansas, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Wipfli LLP 
 
Madison, Wisconsin 
March 8, 2018 
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Section I - Summary Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued? Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weaknesses identified? No 
 Significant deficiencies identified? No 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs:  
 Material weaknesses identified? No 
 Significant deficiencies identified? No 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major program Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in  
accordance with the Uniform Guidance [2 CFR 200.516(a)]  No 

Identification of major federal programs: 

Name of Federal Major Program or Cluster CFDA No. 

U.S. Department of Labor 

WWIOA Cluster 17.258, 17.259, 17.278 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 
 Federal $750,000 
    
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No 
 
Section II - Financial Statement Findings 
 
None 
 
Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
None 
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Section IV – Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 
 
Findings - Financial Statements Audit 

 
Finding: None 
 

Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit 
 
Questioned Costs None 
 
Finding  None 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Directors 
Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. 
Emporia, Kansas 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. (a 
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and the 
related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.  
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis, and is not a required 
part of the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.  In our opinion, the information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 13, 
2017, on our consideration of Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southeast 
KANSASWORKS, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Wipfli LLP 

Madison, Wisconsin
March 13, 2017



Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.

Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2016

Current assets:
Cash 79,949$          
Grants receivable 48,858
Accounts receivable 6,290
Accounts receivable, related party 27,196
Prepaid expenses 19,330

Total current assets 181,623

Property and equipment:
Equipment 44,584
Accumulated depreciation 24,946)(

Property and equipment, net 19,638

TOTAL ASSETS 201,261$        

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 21,723$          
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 88,169
Accrued vacation 10,200
Grant funds received in advance 61,532

Total current liabilities 181,624

Net assets:
Unrestricted 19,637

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 201,261$        

Liabilities and Net Assets

Assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 3



Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenue:
Grant revenue 2,197,183$     

Expenses:
Program activities:

Adult programs 582,252
Youth programs 632,986
Dislocated workers programs 377,949
Rapid response / national emergency grant 184)(
Job training grant 20,478
Health professional opportunity program 403,178

Total program activities 2,016,659

   Management and general 186,897

      Total expenses 2,203,556

Change in net assets 6,373)(

Net assets, beginning of year 26,010

Net assets, end of year 19,637$          

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  4



Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.

Schedule of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Program
Management & 

General Total

Staff salaries and benefits 955,912$           119,986$           1,075,898$        
On-the-job training 99,040               0                        99,040               
Work experience 76,494               0                        76,494               
Support services 133,283             0                        133,283             
ITA education and training 505,638             0                        505,638             
Other program expenses 925                    0                        925                    
Professional services 22,961               1,395                 24,356               
Miscellaneous contracted services 43,745               974                    44,719               
Paymaster services 8,028                 36,897               44,925               
Rent 78,136               4,262                 82,398               
Utilities 4,816                 2,369                 7,185                 
Insurance 3,531                 4,306                 7,837                 
Janitorial services 568                    0                        568                    
Phone and internet 19,010               1,714                 20,724               
Printing expense 1,883                 0                        1,883                 
Travel and meeting expense 40,576               6,835                 47,411               
Materials 13)(                      917                    904                    
Small equipment purchases 9,860                 0                        9,860                 
Membership dues 5,852                 178                    6,030                 
Postage 63                      0                        63                      
Miscellaneous expenses 6,351                 694                    7,045                 
Depreciation 0                        6,370                 6,370                 

Total 2,016,659$        186,897$           2,203,556$        

                                                                             

See accompanying notes to financial statements 5



Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Increase (decrease) in cash:
Cash flows from operating activities

Change in net assets (6,373)$           

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 
  to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 6,370              
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Grants receivable 188,314          
Accounts receivable 23,375)(            
Prepaid expenses 1,198              
Accounts payable 186,513)(          
Accrued expenses 37,000)(            
Accrued payroll and related expenses 54,517            
Accrued vacation 4,307              
Accrued vacation 61,532            

Net cash provided by operating activities 62,977            

Change in cash 62,977            
Cash, beginning of year 16,972            

Cash, end of year 79,949$          
                      

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 6



Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

7

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operation 

Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. (the “Organization”) is a tax-exempt non-profit 
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The Organization 
was incorporated in 1997 in anticipation of the passage of the Workforce Investment 
Act (WIA) of 1998.  As the Local Workforce Investment Board (LWIB) for 17 counties in 
southeast Kansas, the primary duties of the Organization are to manage federal job 
training funds, operate One-Stop Workforce Centers and coordinate the public 
workforce system in Southeastern Kansas. 

The Organization is fully funded with the federal grants provided for various job training 
programs.  The funds passed through the Kansas Department of Commerce from the 
U.S. Department of Labor and U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
constitutes approximately 81% and 18%, respectively, of the Organization’s total 
funding.  A significant reduction in the level of funding from the U.S. Department of 
Labor or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services could have an adverse 
effect on the Organization's program services. 

Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

Accounts and Related Party Receivables 

Accounts and related party receivables consist primarily of advances to employees and 
costs shared with partner agencies for office spaces and other services that were 
requested for reimbursement The Organization analyzes the receivables and records 
an allowance for doubtful accounts based on prior collection, experience, and specific 
customer attributes.  When all collection efforts have been exhausted, The 
Organization writes off receivables against the allowance.  There was no allowance for 
doubtful accounts related to accounts and related party receivables at June 30, 2016. 



Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property and Equipment  

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  The 
Organization capitalizes equipment costing $5,000 or more and a useful life of over one 
year.  Depreciation is charged to expense using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful life of each asset.   

Equipment purchased with grant funds is owned by the Organization while used in the 
program for which it was purchased or in other future authorized programs. However, 
the various funding sources have a reversionary interest in the equipment purchased 
with grant funds.  Its disposition, as well as the ownership of any proceeds therefrom, is 
subject to funding source regulations.  The net book value of grant-funded property and 
equipment as of June 30, 2016, was $19,638. 

Classification of Net Assets 

Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets of the 
Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations 
or where donor imposed stipulations are met in the year of the contribution. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations 
that may or may not be met, either by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of 
time.  When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are transferred to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets 
released from restrictions.  As of June 30, 2016, the Organization did not have any 
temporarily restricted net assets. 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations 
that they be maintained permanently by the Organization.  Generally, the donors of 
these assets permit the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on any 
related investments for general or specific purposes.  As of June 30, 2016, the 
Organization did not have any permanently restricted net assets. 



Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Grant Revenue 

Grants are either recorded as contributions or exchange transactions based on criteria 
contained in the grant award. 

Grant Awards that are Contributions 

Grants that qualify as contributions are recorded as invoiced to the funding sources.  
Revenue is recognized in the accounting period when the related allowable expenses 
are incurred.  Amounts received in excess of expenses are reflected as grant funds 
received in advance. 

Grant Awards that are Exchange Transactions 

Exchange transactions reimburse based on a predetermined rate for services 
performed.  The revenue is recognized in the period the service is performed. 

Income Taxes 

The Organization is a nonprofit corporation organized under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code and is exempt from federal and Kansas income taxes. 

The Organization is required to assess whether it is more likely than not that a tax 
position will be sustained upon examination on the technical merits of the position 
assuming the taxing authority has full knowledge of all information.  If the tax position 
does not meet the more likely than not recognition threshold, the benefit of that position 
is not recognized in the financial statements.  The Organization has determined there 
are no amounts to record as assets or liabilities related to uncertain tax positions.   

Cost Allocation

Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting services.  Joint 
costs related to more than on program or function are allocated to benefiting programs 
using various allocation methods depending on the type of joint cost being allocated.  
Joint costs are those costs incurred for the common benefit of all Organization 
programs that cannot be readily identified with a final cost objective. 

Functional Expenses 

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been 
summarized on a functional basis in the statements of activities and functional 
expenses.  Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and 
supporting services benefited. 



Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 13, 2017, which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 

Note 2 Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Organization maintains its cash balance at one financial institution.  Balances are 
insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) coverage up to $250,000.  At 
times during the year, balances in these accounts may exceed the insurance limits.  
Management believes the financial institutions have strong credit ratings and credit risk 
related to these deposits is minimal.  There were no uninsured balances in excess of 
limits as of June 30, 2016. 

Note 3 Grants Receivable 

Grants receivable represents reimbursable expenditures incurred and accrued for 
program and other grant funds.  Management does not believe that an estimate for 
doubtful receivables would be necessary since such funds are awarded by the federal, 
state, and other local governments and are expected to be fully reimbursed. Total 
grants receivable as of June 30, 2016, was $48,858.  

Note 4 Operating Leases 

The Organization leases various buildings and office equipment for its administrative 
and field offices under operating lease agreements.  Lease payments for the year 
ended June 30, 2016, were $138,003.  The future rental commitments under these 
leases having remaining terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2016, are as 
follows:

2017 $138,135 
2018 95,415 
2019 95,415 
2020 95,415 
2021 and thereafter 111,815 

Total $536,195 

The Organization also subleases space in the various buildings.  Sublease receipts 
approximated $30,178, per quarter during the year ended June 30, 2016.  The financial 
statement expenses are reported net of these receipts.  Anticipated future minimum 
lease receipts on the Organization’s subleases as of June 30, 2015, are $194,000. 



Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 5 Retirement Plan 

The Organization participates in a cost sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit 
pension plan (the Plan). The Plan is administered by the Kansas Public Employees 
Retirement System (KPERS), a body corporate and an instrumentality of the State of 
Kansas.  Participation in the Plan was optional, but irrevocable once elected.  Plan 
benefits include retirement benefits, life insurance, disability income benefits, and death 
benefits and may only be changed by the Kansas General Assembly.   

KPERS issues a stand-alone comprehensive annual financial report, which is available 
on the KPERS website at www.kpers.org.   The June 30, 2016, report indicated that the 
Plan was 65.0% funded.  KPERS has also estimated that the Organization share of the 
net pension liability was $773,824, as of that date. 

The Organization was required to contribute at a rate of 9.48% of covered salary from 
July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015, and 9.18% from January 1, 2016 through 
June 30, 2016. The State of Kansas is required to contribute the remaining amount 
necessary to achieve the actuarially determined contribution rate. The Organization 
was also required to contribute up to 1% of covered salary for life insurance. During the 
year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization contributed $80,012 to KPERS.  The 
member-employee contribution rate for Tier 1 and Tier 2 is 6% of covered salary. 
Member-employees' contributions are withheld by their employer and paid to KPERS. 

Note 6 Related Parties  

The Organization is entirely funded with Federal program grant passed-through the 
Kansas Department of Commerce (KDOC).  The Organization has also entered into a 
sublease agreement with the KDOC where the Organization receives reimbursement of 
expenses for the shared office space, equipment and supplies. During the year, the 
Organization reported grant revenue of $2,192,463, and reimbursements totaling 
$53,073, for sublease payments, utilities, supplies, One-Stop and other shared costs. 

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the following fees were paid to related parties.  
Employees of these entities served as board members for the Organization during the 
year ended June 30, 2016:  

Midwest Computer Solutions, Inc. $28,468 
B & W Truck Beds 23,009 
Pfefferkorn & Baldridge 20,558 
Norfolk Iron & Metal 2,341 

Note 7 Grant Award Commitments 

At June 30, 2016, the Organization had received future funding commitments under 
various grants of approximately $1,200,000.  These commitments are not recognized 
in the accompanying financial statements as revenue and receivables as they are 
conditional awards. 
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Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.
Schedule A-1
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through Entity Passed Through Federal

Grantor / Program or Cluster Title Number Identifying Number Program Year to Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce

WIA/WIOA Cluster

WIA Adult Program 17.258 FY15-A-005 10/01/14-06/30/16 0$                        247,626$

WIA/WIOA Adult Program 17.258 PY15-A-005 07/01/15-06/30/17 49,823
WIA/WIOA Adult Program 17.258 FY16-A-005 10/01/15-06/30/17 345,931

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 17.258 0 643,380

WIA Youth Program 17.259 PY14-Y-005 07/01/14-06/30/16 334,589

WIA/WIOA Youth Program 17.259 PY15-Y-005 07/01/15-06/30/17 369,220

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 17.259 0 703,809

WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY15-DW-005 10/01/14-06/30/16 193,644

WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 FY16-DW-005 10/01/15-06/30/17 145,460

WIA/WIOA Dislocated Worker Program 17.278 PY15-DW-005 07/01/15-06/30/17 82,699

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 17.278 0 421,803

Total Federal Expenditures - WIA/WIOA Cluster (CFDA 17.258, 17.259, 17.278) 0 1,768,992

H-1B Job Training Grants 17.268 12-H1B-005 11/14/11-11/30/15 0 20,478

WIA National Emergency Grants (NEG) 17.277 14-DWTNEG-005 06/26/13-06/30/15 0 184)(

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 0 1,789,286

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Passed through Kansas Department of Commerce
ACA Health Profession Opportunity Grants 93.093 KHPOP Impact Study 01/01/13-12/31/14 0 7,072)(

ACA Health Profession Opportunity Grants 93.093 15-KHPOP-005 09/30/14-09/29/15 212,736
ACA Health Profession Opportunity Grants 93.093 FY16-KHPOP-005 09/30/15-09/29/16 197,514

Total Federal Expenditures - CFDA 93.093 0 403,178

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 0 403,178

Total Federal award expenditures 0$ 2,192,464$

See Independent Auditor's Report. 12



Kansas Local Area I Workforce Investment
Board, Inc.
Schedule A-2
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note 3 - Indirect Cost Rate

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal grant activity of Southeast 
KansasWorks, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2016. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards  (Uniform Guidance).   Because the schedule presents only 
a selected portion of the operations of Southeast KansasWorks, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net assets or cash flows of Southeast KansasWorks, Inc.

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such expenditures are recognized following
the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to
amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

Southeast KansasWorks, Inc. did not elect to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

See Independent Auditor's Report. 13
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters 

Board of Directors 
Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. 
Emporia, Kansas 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and 
the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Southeast KANSASWORKS, 
Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, 
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended and 
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 13, 2017.   

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Southeast 
KANSASWORKS, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southeast 
KANSASWORKS, Inc.’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Wipfli LLP 

Madison, Wisconsin 
March 13, 2017 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance With Requirements For Each Major Federal 
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Board of Directors 
Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. 
Emporia, Kansas 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2016.  Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary 
of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.'s 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program.  However, our audit does not provide legal determination Southeast KANSASWORKS, 
Inc.'s compliance with those requirements. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.  
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.'s 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each major federal program to determine our auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc.'s 
internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a 
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Wipfli LLP 

Madison, Wisconsin 
March 13, 2017 



Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Years Ended June 30, 2016
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Section I - Summary Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued? Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weaknesses identified? No 
 Significant deficiencies identified? No 
 Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs:  
 Material weaknesses identified? No 
 Significant deficiencies identified? No 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major program Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in  
accordance with the Uniform Guidance [2 CFR 200.516(a)]  No 

Identification of major federal programs: 

Name of Federal Major Program or Cluster CFDA No. 

U.S. Department of Labor 

WIA/WIOA Cluster 17.258, 17.259, 17.278 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 
 Federal $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

None

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None



Southeast KANSASWORKS, Inc. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Years Ended June 30, 2016
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Section IV – Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 

Findings - Financial Statements Audit 

Finding: None 

Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit 

Finding: None 

.
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